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Vision
To be a premier quality cement manufaturing unit

engaged in nation building through the most efficient
utilization of resources.

@ @
Mission
Successfully deliver quality cement by using innovative

practices with the ultimate goal of increasing the
satisfaction of our customers

To minimize the cost of production by using
state-of-the-art technology and utilizing our experience in
increasing profits for our shareholders




--------

Core Values

At Flying Cement, core values are always given impertance. These values are not only
theoretical but in actual fact delve deep in the hearts of entire team

These values are reflected with in the
name of FLYING itself.

You

Flying Cement
always maintains
You first' approcch,

Lea de rs h i p not only to please our

customer but dlso to
Our objective is'to lead as a sattisfy our

cost effective competitor. shareholders.
We understand the demeaind

Foc u s of cement industry at o
global level as well as the

needs of people within

Pakistan.

We believe in
focusing on reducing
cost and improving
quality thereby
offering profit to our
shareholders.



AGF

Global

We strive to be
reckoned with dignity

New in global market.

We are pioneer in using new
Initiqtives ideas and strategies for the
cost effective and quality
Taking initiative in i _ . cement manufacturing.
aking initictive in incorporating
modern technology to reduce
cost and to imprave gudlity.



ighlights

For The Year 2020-21
In addition to the reported and comparable metrics. we highlight below
key figures for our shareholders.




.........

Gross Sales

PKR in million

2021 2020

Profit/(Loss) After Tax

PKR in million

2021 2020

Total Assets

PKR in million

2021 2020

Earning Per Share
PKR

2021 2020
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Culture at Flying

P Promoting culture of high values
High employee morale

Investment in human capital
Innovation, excellence and integrity

Shared values and goals

vy v v v v

Collaboration and teamwork

» Equal opportunity employer |
P Commitment and personal responsibility

» Strong company alignment towards goal achievement

» Leadership interaction between managers and subordinates
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Environ.mental
Protection

Management of the company is committed towards environmental
protection and prevention of pollution. The company has been
dedicatedly playing its role towards the development of a better society
and a better future through continual improvement in the
Environmental Management System.

The Company has installed 7.5MW Waste Heat Recovery Power Plant
(WHRPP) at its site to mitigate the environment effects and significantly

reduce carbon emissions. The Company has Installed latest technology
of bag filter which reduces carbon footprint of the Company, it has
envisioned the plantation of the trees and has planted many trees to
this effect as well. The management is also planning to introduce
environmental projects in near future as well.




Mile§tones
Achieved

| Q

Successfully completed

Installation and Successful completion 0

commissioning of 7.5MW of right share issue

Waste Heat Recovery amounting to Rs 2 Achieved Profitability in
Power Plant. Billion. the current financial

year of Rs 144 million as
compared to a |loss of
Rs 531 million in the
previous financial year.
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Maintained gearing ratio
at 38% compared to
industry average of

47%.

o

Installed latest technology of
bag filter which reduces carbon
footprint of the company
making it environment friendly.
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Building Blocks
for Our Business

Business Growth

Incremental Revenue

Incremental Profit

Higher ROCE

Future Potential Opportunity

Business Sustainability

Risk Mitigation

Changing Trends of the Customers

Latest Technologies

Regulatory Compliance

Strategic Alliances

20
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Company beleives in maintaining relationships based on trust
and collaboration with its stakeholders. Our stakeholders extend
valuable contributions to our growth and existence. Procedure for
stakeholders’ engagement includes effective communication, good
harmony, and compliance with laws & regulations.
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Distributors

Developing and sustaining long term relationships with our Distributors farms the key to our business
success. Their expectations are focused on product quality and pricing.

Suppliers and Vendors

Our sustainable growth is also attributable to engaging reputed and dependable suppliers & vendors as
business partners for supply of raw material, industrial inputs, equipment, and machinery. We believe in
strategic relationships and have developed strong connections with top local and international vendors in
the industry.

Banks

We value our relationship with our financial partners who are engaged with the Company on an on-going
basis in relation to negotiation of rates, lending purposes and short-term financing. Banks are also consulted
on issues linked with letters of credit and payments to suppliers, along with other disbursements of
operational nature.

Regulators

Our commitment to compliance with laws and regulations is evident from our Corporate and Legal team’s
continued efforts for efficient and effective legal and regulatory conformity. The engagement includes
submission of periodic reports, communicating through letters and emails and responding to enguiries and
meetings as and when required. Active engagement with regulators improves the level of compliance.

Local People

Company's main reason for existence is to bring about o positive change in the community. To pursue this
cause, the Company invest in the community. Its main areas of focus inclucde Education, Literary Activities,
Health Care and Disaster Relief.

Shareholders

Support of shareholders is critical in achieving the Company's objectives. The Company safeguards its
shareholders’ interest as its prime responsibility. Our shareholders’ interest revolves around good returns,
profitability, growth, and regulatory compliances. We respond to our shareholders’ expectations through
improvement in business mechanics, effective governance, and corporate reporting framework.

Investor Relations

Maintaining transparency between the Company and its shareholders, Flying Cement website,
(www.ﬂyingcement.com) contains all the major financial information needed for investors' decision-making in
a separate tab of “Investor Relations”.

22



Quality Assurance

Of Products

The quality policy of the cement is monitored through
the chemical laboratories located at the site installed
with latest instrumental analysis techniques directly
linked through PLC to control the process of
manufacturing automatically keeping lowest variation
brand from the required values/parameters laid by the
British Standards BS-12-1991.

Flying Cement Company is committed to produce high
quality Ordinary Portland Cement as per International
and  British  Standards  to  cchieve  customers'
satisfaction

The company is committed to abide by all applicable
legal and regulatory requirements and shall strive for
continual improvements including prevention of
pollution by establishing and monitoring of its Quality
and Environmental objectives.

The Chairman and Management dre committed to
communicate and maintain this policy at all levels of
the company, and achieve continual improvement
through teamwork.

The Company has quality assurance certificates from
Cement Research & Development Institute, Pakistan

FLYING PAKISTAN

PAKISTAN
amm_ww#

23



Strategic Goals

b

Lead Cement business

Manufacture prime quality products

Maintain operational, technological and
managerial excellence

Create new opportunities for business growth
and diversification

Eliminate duplication of resources to economize cost

Maximize productivity and expand sales




Business Ethics

» Transparency in transactions

» Sound business policies

» Judicious use of Company’s resources
» Avoidance of conflicts of interest

» Justice to all

» Integrity at all levels

» Compliance of laws of the land

1] -

=
4
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Code
of Conduct

It is @ fundamental policy of the Company to conduct it business with honesty,
integrity and in accordance with the highest professional, ethical and legal standard.
The Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct (Code) for the
members of the Board of Directors and Employees. The Code define acceptable and
unacceptable behavior provides guidance to directors / Employees in specific
situation that may arise and foster a culture of honesty, accountability and high
standards of personal and professional integrity.
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Salient features of the Code for
the Directors

Conflict of Interests

Each Director must avoid any conflict of interest between the Director and the Company, its associated or
subsidiary undertaking(s). Any situation that involves, or may reasonably be expected to involve, a conflict of
interest with the Company, should be disclosed promptly.

Corporate Opportunities

Directors are prohibited from taking for themselves personally, opportunities related to the Company's business:
using the Company's preperty, information or position for personal gain or competing with the Company for
business opportunities.

Confidentiality

Directors must maintain confidentiality of information entrusted upon to them by the Company and any other
confidential information about the Company and its associated or subsidiary undertaking(s) that comes to them,
except when disclosure is authorized by the Chairman of the Board or legally mandated.

Honesty, Integrity and fair dealing

Directors must act honestly and fairly and exhibit high ethical standards in dealing with all
stakeholders of the Company.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Directors shall comply with laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Compeny including but not limited to the
Companies Act 2017, Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and Insider Trading Laws.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Directors shall comply with laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Company including but not limited to the
Companies Act 2017, Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and Insider Trading Laws.

Encouraging the Reporting of any Possible lllegal or Unethical Behavior

Directors should take steps to ensure that the Compdny promotes ethical behavior; encourages employees to
talk to supervisors, managers and other appropriate personnel when in doubt about the best course of action ina
particular situation; encourages employees to report violation of laws, rules, regulations, Company policies and
procedures or the Company's Code of Conduct to appropriate personnel; and informs employees that the
Company will not allow any retaliation for reports made in good faith.

Trading in Company Shares

Certain restrictions / reporting requirements apply to trading by the Directors in Company shares. Directors shall
moake sure that they remain compliant with these statutory requirements,

Compliance Procedures

Directors should disclose any suspected violations of this Code promptly in the immediate subsequent meeting of
the Board of Directors.

27
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Salient features of the Code for .
the Employees g

Conflict of Interests

employees [ trainees must not engage in activities or transactions which may give rise, or which may be
seen to have given rise, to Conflict between their personal interests and the interest of the Company.

Confidentiality and Disclosure of Information.

Employees [ trainees are expected to safeguard confidential information and must not, without authority,
disclose such information about the Company activities to the press, to any outside source, or to employee /
trainees who are not entitled to such information.

Political Contribution

No funds or assets of the Company may be contributed to any political party or organization or to any
individual who either holds public office or is a candidate for public office except where such a contribution is
permitted by law.

Bribes and Commercial Payments

An employee [ trainee must not give or receive bribes or other payments, which are intended to
influence a business decision or comprornise independent judgment; nor must any employee [ trainee
give money in order to obtain business for the Company, nor receive money for giving Company
business to an outside agency.

Proper Recording of Funds, Assets, Receipts and Disbursements

All funds, assets, receipts and disbursements must be properly recorded in the boaks of the Company.

Agreements with Agents, Sales Representatives or Consultants

Agreements with agents, sales representatives or consultants should state clearly the services to be performed
for the Company, the amount to be paid and all other relevant terms and conditions.

Relations and Dealings with Supplier, Consultants, Agents, Intermediaries
and Other Third Parties

FCCL relations and dealings with supplier, consultants, agents, intermediaries and other third parties should at all
times be such that FCCL's integrity and its reputation should not be damaged if details of the relationship or
dealing were to become public knowledge.

Health, Safety & Environmental Policy

Every employee [ trainee at work must take reasonable care for the health and safety of himself / herself and
others including visitors who may be affected by his [ her acts or omission at work; and co-aperated in the
Company's efforts to protect the environment.

Smoking Policy

Smoking and exposure of workplace to tobacco poses serious health hazards to the employees [ trainees besides
potential risks of fire and explosions. Considering this, smoking is permitted only in the designated 'Smoking Areas’.




Seat Belt Policy

As per the policy, it is mandatory for all FCCL employees [ trainees, contractors, visitors and all other persons to
fasten east belts in the front seats of the vehicle while travelling.

Other Employment, Outside Interests, Civic Activities

FCCI does not allow its employees [ trainees to take any part-time and/ or full-time second employment during
employees' [ trainees’ engagement with the Company.

Unsolicited Gifts

Accepting gifts that might place an employee [ trainee under obligation is prohibited. Employee [ trainee must
politely but firmly decline any such offer and explain that in accordance with the Company's instructions, they are
unable to accept the offer.

Family Connections and Employment of Relatives

Any dealings between staff and outside organization in which they have a direct, indirect or family
connection must be fully disclosed to the Management.

Company and Personal Property

An employee / trainee must not take or use Company property or the property of another employee / trainee
without permission; nor must the employee | trainee use Company's property for private purpose without the
Management's permission.

Alcohol and Drugs

Alcohol in any form and the use of drugs, except under medical advice, is prohibited at all locations.

Gambling

All forms of organized gambling or betting on the Company's premises is forbidden.

Rumor Mongering & Gossiping

Rumor mongering, persuasive allegations, accusations and exaggerations with the main purpose of negatively
influencing and manipulating the minds and emotions of the fellow employees | trainees are strictly prohibited.

Harassment

It is the policy of the Company to promote a productive work environment and not to tolerate verbal or physical
conduct by any employee [ trainee that harasses, disrupts or interferes with another's work performance, creates
an intimidating, humiliating, offensive or hostile environment.

Grievance Handling

FCCL strives to provide a fair and impartial process to its employees / trainees and ensure timely resolution of their
grievance.

Whistle Blowing

In order to enhance good governance and transparency, FCCL has introduced a whistle blowing policy. The policy
provides an avenue to employees / trainees and vendors to raise concerns and report legal and ethical issues like
fraud, corruption or any other unlawful conduct or dangers to the public or the environment.

General Discipline

Every employee [ trainee must adhere to the Company's rules of service and make sure that he / she is familiar
with them.

Reporting Violations [ Disciplinary Actions

Any violation of this code shall be promptly reported to the Human Resources department by any employee |
trainee having knowledge thereof or having reasonable belief that such a violation has occurred.

|
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Opportunities

» Increase in cement prices
» lLower interest rates

» Self pewer generation to further reduce costs and
minimises dependency on WAPDA

» Significant growth in cement demand

» Inerease in market share after expansion

Threats

» An industry oversupply issue might arise due to
ongoing expansion in the sector.

» Riging logistic and imported coal costs
p Potential new entrants in the sector

» Currency devaluation & inflation risk




Factors Affecting The External
Environment And Organisations

Response

Political

Economic

Social

Government instability
and  macroeconomic
policies adversely
impact the Company's
business.

Extensive competition,
fluctuating interest
rates and price
hike in material
cost.

Focus on Corporate
Social Responsibility,
Donations and
development of
communities

Timely adjustments are made in the
organizational processes and policies in
response to actual or anticipated
changes in Government policies.

Management actively looks for the
changes in market conditions and strive
to det accordingly in response using
projections, forecasts and budgeting.

Issues relating to the Cement Industry

are dealt with through the forum of
APCMA.

Management of the Company

actively looking for discovering new
markets to incredse the demand of its

products.

Cost reduction initiatives to control the
costs and also efficient inventory

management systems.

As o sogcially responsible ecorporcite
entity, the Company strives to develop
the communities in which it operates by
ensuring compliance with all
requirements of CSR.

[t donates genereusly to various social
and charitable causes including health,
education and social sectors,
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Technological Continuous
development of
information technology
infrastructures.

Environmental Environmental Footprint,
Global warming, Naturail
disasters ete.

Legal Compliance with the
applicable regulatory
laws,

The Company is continuously upgrading
itself in terms of technological
agdvancement so that the Company can
compete its competitor in.a better way cnd
to provide best products to jts customers.

The Company takes various steps to
protect the environment including
compliance with applicable environmental
standards.

We manage our environmental
performance through efficient use of
natural resources.

The Cempany remains alert to the chanhges
in applicable regulatory laws and ensure
complicnce with relevant laws end
regulations through its professional team:
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Competitive Analysis "

(Porter's Five Forces)

Threat Of New Competition

Companies in the cement sector are firmly established
and the sector has high barriers to entry due to the |
following reasons:

» High initial capital investment required;
» High setup cost; and
P Access to distribution channel is difficult

Threat From Substitute Products

There isn't any distinct substitute of cement.

Bargaining Power Of Customers

>

.Y‘
i

Generally, direct customers of cement manufacturers are distributors, dealers and
retailers who further supply to the end consumers, The market seems to have a L
good appetite for the new-entrants because barriers to the entry as a cement
distributor, dealer and retailer are very low. The Company has a sound customer
base and enjoys a hedlthy and mutually beneficial relationship.

/

H

I ———

BargainingiPower-Of Suppliers
The Compe or se
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Departr
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the Company’s interests.
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Strategic
Objectives

To support value creation for all of our stakeholders, Flying
Cement’s business is focused on the delivery of the following six
strategic priorities, which aim to increase upon sustainable growth
and cost efficiency. Everyone at Flying Cement has a role to play in
delivering these strategic priorities.
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Strategic Objectives

Due to the potential of growth in Cement
industry we are focusing to capture more
market share.

We are stiving to achieve the efficiency by
reducing the cost of production and efficient
utilisation of resources.

Sustainable Development

(In terms of environmental and social
responsibility)

We endeavor to give back to the
communities that we operate in and also to
the society at large by efficiently using
natural resources. We aim to deliver high
quality goods at competitive prices while
progressively reducing ecological impacts.

Developing our people is important to us.
Human capital is an asset and plays an
important role in our success. Our Core
Values, Code of Conduct and HR policies
provide an outline which serves as a guiding
force for the whole organization.

sr.No Objectives
1 Market Share Increase

2 HR Excellence

3 Sustainablity Development

4 Efficiency

Strategies in place orintended to be
implemented to achieve those strategic
objectives

The Company is focusing on brownfield expansion
of Line-1l (7700 tons per day-Clinker) in order to
increase the production capacity so that Company
will be in line with the market growth.

The new plant machinery (Line-11) is being supplied
by FLSmidth, world renowned European supplier.
The company's focus will be to achieve economies
of scale in production.

Company complies with all relevant National
Environmental Quality Standards. Contributes
generously towards the well-being of communities
in and around the geography of its operations. The
transfer of existing load of electricity to renewable
sources of energy such as WHR shows company's
commitment to keep the environment clean.

As a responsible corporate citizen, Flying Cement
ensures that all social and environmental
dimensions are considered while developing
strategies, policies, practices and procedures.

The Company has put in place processes to
develop and groom professionals at various levels.
The Company is dn equal opportunity employer.

Our systems are designed to ensure transparency
and fairness at all levels by clearly defining KPIs for
each position in alignment with Company’s vision
and core values.

Measures
Increase in production capacity

Reduced employee turnover and higher return on
human capital

Continuous suppert for community development and

medsure to implement UN's sustdinable development goadls

Internal and external economies of scale



Going Forward

Key Priorities
(Micro)

The new Line-2 is expected to start commercial production in the 1st quarter of FY2022-23.
which will take the total clinker production edpacity to 1,700 tpd.

A captive power plant of 12MW is being installed at the plant premises which is expected to
commence operdtions by October 2021 which will minimise dependency on WAPDA.

Company's optimum blend of local and imported coal will serve as hedge against inflation.

Adequate gearing ratio to protect against volatility.



Key Opportunities
(Macro)

Stable interest rate policy maintained by SBP along with
forward guidance can have positive impact in the future.

The PSDP in FY 202122 has been enhanced by 38% from Rs. 650
billion in FY 2020- 21 to Rs. 900 billion. Enhanced focus on
housing and construction activity and CPEC projects bodes
well for overall growth in the economy.

Uptick in construction activities post COVID-19 lock down
supported the cement prices. In the wake of improved
capdeity utilization, the prices are expected to remciin stable.
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Chairman’s Review Report

At Flying Cement Co ltd we were able to
respond promptly and efficiently to a much
more challenging year than normal as the
industry was posed with multiple economic
challenges such as low cement prices, lack of
demand in  market, emergence of the
pandemic at the beginning of the year — this
was in good measure because in advance we
were building robust foundations for future
upon which we were able to implement our
multiple actions and initiatives resulting in
positive business outlook.

Our top priority remained maintaining Efficient
Plant Operations, completion of New Captive
Power Plant and prioritising completion of New
Cement Line currently in erection stage as well
as Health and Safety of all the employees.

Going forwdrd the biggest challenge at hand is
the rising energy costs. We are closely
monitoring the price trend to ensure minimum
impact of any price increase on the Company.

(L

Kamran Khan
Chairman

Lahore
Dated September 20, 2021

The Composition of the Board is well balanced
between executive, non-executive and
independent Directors. Corporate strategy and
objectives have been set such as to align the
Vision of the Company. The Company complies
with all the requirements set out in the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 with respect to the composition, procedure
and the meetings of the Board of Directors and
its Committees.

In the end, | would like to thank all stakeholders
for the trust they have posed in their Company
without which such a remarkable turnaround in
financial and corporate performance versus
last year would not have been possible. Your
Company is ready to scale new heights and
achieve unprecedented levels of growth going
forward InshaAllah.
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Whistle Blowing Policy
Statement

The Management encourages whistle blowing culture in the organization
and has adopted a culture to detect, identify and report any activity which is
not in line with the Company policies, any misuse of Company’s properties
or any breach of law which may affect the reputation of the Company. The
Company has adopted the best corporate policies to protect employee(s)
who report corporate wrongdoings, illegal conduct, internal fraud and
discrimination against retaliation.

The Company promotes transparency and accountability through
publication of accurate financial information to all the stakeholders,
implementation of sound, effective and efficient internal control system and
operational procedures.

The Company encourages Whistle Blowing System to raise the issue directly
to Chadirman Audit Committee and / or to Chief Executive and [ or to the
Company Secretary and / or to Head of Internal Audit provided that:-

The Whistleblower has sufficient evidence(s) to ensure genuineness
of the fact after a proper investigation at his own end

The Whistleblower understands that his act will cause more good
than harm to the Company and he [ she is doing this because of his
loyalty with the Company; and

The Whistleblower understands the seriousness of his / her action
and is ready to assume his [ her own responsibility.

The Management understands that through the use of a good Whistle
Blowing Plan, they can discover and develop a powerful ally in building trust
with its employees and manage fair and transparent operations. The
Company, therefore, provides a mechanism whereby any employee who
meets the above referred conditions can report any case based on merit
without any fear of retaliation and reprisal to any of the above offices.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

In addition to the Contribution of the Company in Economic development, the Company is also

aiming to improve the quality of life of the workforce and their families as well as of the local
community and society in which the Company is operating.

In order to enrich the lives and to pave the way for sustainable living, the Company has taken
different initiatives which are as follow;

[ ]

®

Education and capability development for employability
Sustainable and resilient infrastructure and mobility
Charity, Social welfare and reduction of poverty from society
Culture of environmental protection, health and safety

Reduction of carbon footprints

We aspire to positively impact Pakistan and to achieve this we undertook, but not limited
to, the following activities during the current year;

Created job opportunities for the local community and provided the platform to
train technical staff.

Free medical facilities to the employees at site.

Free fire-fighting service for nearby areas in extreme emergencies.
Donation in shape of supply of food to nearby residents.

Provided food to needy and poor people of adjoining areas

Installed latest technology of bag filter which reduces carbon footprint of the
company making it environment friendly.

Promoting Sustainable Workplaces by improving employees’ lifestyles, encouraging
diversity and creating an environmentally friendly office

Provided financial assistance for the education of the employee’s children.

Tree plantation activity was performed in the nearby area of plant.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of your Company have the pleasure to present before you the
28th Annual Report of your Company along with duly Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Cement Industry reflected a significant growth in the demand for the year ended June 30, 2021 as
compared to the year ended June 30, 2020. Continued initiatives taken by the Government for real
estate sector coupled with CPEC activities resulted in high demand of cement during the current year.

Principal Activities
The main objective of the Company is to manufacture and sell Ordinary Portland Cement.
Business Performe

The production and sales volume figures for the year of your Company together with the comparative figures
are as under:

Particular 2021 2020
. <
Cement Production 397,000 86,400 g;
=2
)
Cement Dispatches 388,156 86,957 3

The data shows astonished increase in the financial year 2021 both in terms of production and
dispatched as compared to last year.

Financial Performance

A comparison of the key financial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as under:

Particulars (Rupees in Thousand) 2021 2020
Sales revenue Gross 4,379,653 1,372,198
Less: Sales Tax/ Federal Excise Duty 1173925 292690
Net: Sales revenue 3,205,728 1,079,508
Gross Profit/(Loss) 302937 (462,384)
Operating Profit/(Loss) 219,495 (528,353)
profit/(Loss) before tax 253,698 (512,825)
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 143685 (530,720)
Earnings/(Loss) per Share 0.38 (302)
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During the year under review, the Company's results of operations, financial position and net assets are indicative
of an improved financial condition. We have shown the turnaround position by putting the best efforts which
is our fundamental priority and are proud of the impact of our efforts. This improved performance of the Company,
is the reflection of strength of our team, businesses and operations. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the
Company remained focus on growth in terms of top line and capacity utilization. Hence, the Company
performed remarkably and was able to eclipse its last year performance in terms of profit after taxation, which
converted from loss of Rs. (530,719,920) to profit of Rs. 143,684,742.

The Company recorded a significant revenue growth and the Gross sales of the Company as compared to
corresponding year increased from Rs. 1372 (M) to Rs. 4,380 (M) showing an increase of 219% whereas the Net
sales of the Company increased from Rs.1,080 (M) to Rs. 3206 (M) showing an increase of 197% over the year
owing to continued better operational and financial management measures taken by the Company.

The Company is expanding its production capacity as well as enhancing its power generation to recoup the
demand. Flying Cement Company Limited has successfully completed the installation and commissioning of
75MW Waste Heat Recovery Power Plant (WHRPP) at its site in Mangowall, District Khushab during the year
ended June 30, 2021. Adoption of Waste Heat Recovery Power Plant (WHRPP) technology is resulting in
significant cost saving in power consumption for the Company when compared to WAPDA's high power tariff.
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Basic earnings per share after taxation for the year was Rs. 0.38 (2020: loss per share Rs. 3.02). There is no
dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, as the Company has no convertible dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding as of June 30, 2021.

The Board has proposed the final cash dividend as Nil and 5% bonus shares subject to the approval of
shareholders in the upcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on October 28, 2021.
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All related party transcactions entered into are at arm’s length basis which were reviewed and approved by
Audit Committee as well as by the Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the PSX Regulations
of The Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and of the requirement of Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017
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The COVID-19 pandemic has brought the sector to a halt in the business activities and pandemic of that sort
remains o high source of risk in the cement industry. The recovery from the losses in the pandemic is being
realized over the period.

Management of the company is committed towards environmental protection and prevention of pollution.
The company has been dedicatedly playing its role towards the development of a better society and a better
future through continual improvement in the Environmental Management System.

The Company has installed 7.5MW Waste Heat Recovery Power Plant (WHRPP) at its site to mitigate the
environment effects and significantly reduce carbon emissions. The Company has Installed latest technology
of bag filter which reduces carbon footprint of the Company, it has envisioned the plantation of the trees and
has planted many trees to this effect as well. The management is also planning to introduce environmental
projects in near future as well.
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The Directors of the Company are committed towards long term measures in line with United Nation's
Sustainable Development Goals. The Company strives hard to develop communities in which it operates and
is actively engaged in community services. The Company meets all the food requirements of all its
employees free of cost dnd strives to take care of their families through provision of educational and health
services. It also sends its employees for religious pilgrimage each year to Saudi Arabia which are selected
through balloting. The Company has also taken care of its nearest villagers in the time of floods and natural
disasters and works for poverty alleviation, to further protect the environment and move closer to sustainable
development.
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The Company Whistle blowing encourages and enables all concerned to raise serious concerns within the
Company rather than overlooking a problem or 'blowing the whistle’ outside. The Company is committed to
the highest possible standards of honesty, excellence, consistency, compassion, fairness, integrity and
accountability.

Board Of Directors

Composition of Board of Directors is as under.

Description Number of Directors
Male 6
Female 1

Categorical Composition

Independent Directors 2
Non-Executive Directors 3
Executive Directors 2
Members of the Board of Directors and its Committees.
Board Of Directors
Mr. Kamran Khan Chairman Executive Director
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Qaisim Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Samina Kamran Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Momin Qamar Member Executive Director
Mr. Omar Naeem Member Incdlependent Director
Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan Member Independent Director
Mr. Agha Hamayun Khan Chief Executive
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Audit Committee

Mr. Omar Naeem Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Qasim Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan Member Non-Executive Director

Human Resource And Remuneration Committee

Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Momin Qamar Member Executive Director

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan Member Non-Executive Director
o | » - .“ . = o~

Chairman Review

The Chairman’s review is enclosed and duly endorsed by Board of Directors.

The Company has formed Code of Conduct to run its business operations effectively.
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Statement of Compliance duly reviewed by Board of Directors and Auditors is annexed.

Remuneration Of Directors

The Company will not pay any remuneration to its independent directors except meeting fee for attending
the Board and Committee meetings.

o

ternal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors has established an efficient system of internal financial controls, to ensure effective
and efficient conduct of operations, safe guarding of Company assets compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and reliable financial reporting.

Future Prospects

The Company is poised to grow and increase its market share among its competitors and maintain its
growth, in a relatively competitive environment. The future outlook of cement industry remains promising and
demanding. Moving forward, we are focusing on enhancing the market share of the Company through
capacity expansion of new Line-2 of 7,700 TPD of clinker which will take the total clinker production capacity to
11,700 TPD. The new Line-2 is expected to start commercial production in the First quarter of FY2022-23.
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Moreover, a captive power plant of 12MW is being installed at the plant premises which started trail
production in June 2021 and will commence commercial production in October 2021; this will eliminate the
dependency on WAPDA and make the company self-reliant in power consumption whilst also resulting in
signhificant cost saving.

Overall, the economy was able to pull off a V-shape recovery due to timely measures taken by the
Government of Pakistan/SBP including accommodative fiscal and monetary measures. This led to faster than
anticipated growth during the year in construction and allied industries which is expected gather more pace
going forward.

The Company is quite hopeful for improvement in domestic sales on account of Government spending on
mega projects, multipurpose water reservoirs [ Dams and five million housing schemes including CPEC which
will help the company to maintain its growth in the current financial year. The rising population has also
increased more demand of houses in the country which is being addressed by the government through Naya
Pakistan Housing Scheme (NPHS). Similarly, the package announced for the construction industry by the
Federal Government will continue to improve demand of cement in the country. We expect better
performance in future as well.

The potential challenges going forward can include Increase in the cost of production caused by high
inflation, increasing coal prices in international markets, expected hike in electricity rates, weakening PKR
currency, increase in interest rates, COVID-19 situation and geo-political uncertainty.

However, despite the odds, the Company is well positioned for sustainable growth and profit maximization
through achieving economies of scale in production, keeping input costs in check through use of optimum
blend of local and imported coal and captive power generation. Moreover, Company’s lower debt levels
compared to peers in industry will also act as a hedge against volatility.

We all are highly motivated and willing to contribute enthusiastically on continuous basis. We assure, the
mancagement will continue to work hard to provide long term sustainable growth and value for all its
stakeholders.

The Directors of your Company review the Company’s strategic direction and business plans on a regular
basis. The Audit Committee is empowered for effective compliance of Code of Corporate Governance. We
are taking all necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance in your Company as required by the
Code. As part of the Compliance, we confirm the following:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
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b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of
financial statements.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed in the
listing regulations.

h) Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.
i) The Directors, executives and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions of the
Company's shares during the year, except those reported to the regulatory authorities and disclosed in the

annexed Pattern of Shareholding.

j) Reasons for significant deviations from last year's operating results have been compared in the relevant
section of the Directors’ report.

k) Information about taxes and levies is given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
) The company has planned to upgrade its production operations by enhancing production capacity of its
plant. The matter has been disclosed to shareholders in the due time and also has been written in this

directors’ report.

m) Details of number of Board and Committees meetings held during the year and attendance by each
director has been disclosed below:

Sr.No. Name of Director Mggggjgs Audihtn(ezgt?;\]g\sittee 1l &nl?‘ge%mgnsittee
1 Mr. Kamran Khan 8 N/A N/A
2 Mr. Momin Qamar 3 N/A N/A
3 Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khen 8 4 1
4 Mr. Qasim Khan 8 4 N/A
5 Mrs. Samina Kamran 6 N/A 1
6 Mr. Omar Naeem 6 2 N/A
7 Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan 6 N/A N/A
8 Mr. Agha Hamayun Khan 8 N/A N/A
* Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Khan 7 N/A N/A
¥ Mr. Nadeem Tufail 2 2 1
Total Number of Meetings Held 8 4 1
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The leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend meeting due to their
preoccupation.

*Mr. Omar Naeem and Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan were appoeinted as Independent Directors on 03-1-2020 to
fulfill the casual vacancy arising upon the resignation of Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Khan and Mr. Nadeem
Tufaiil.

n) The board has been provided with detailed in house briefings and information package to acquaint them
with the code, applicable laws, their duties and responsibilities to enable them to effectively manage the
affairs of the Company for and on behalf of the shareholders.
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An unfunded gratuity scheme has been maintained. Provision has been made in the financial statements
accordingly for permanent employees of the Company.
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Auditor

The Auditors M/s. Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered their services for the next term. The
Auditors confirmed that they have been given satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on codle of ethics, as adopted by the ICAP. The Audit
Committee and the Board recommended their re-appointment.

=

Pattern Of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2021 along with disclosures as required by the Code of Corporate
Governance is annexed.

Material changes in the Financial Statements date and the reporting date have been duly incorporated in
Financials.
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The Board acknowledges the assistance and cooperation of all stakeholders including financial institutions,
customers, creditors and government departments. We alsc appreciate and admire the continued support
and cooperation of employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Director Chief Executive

Lahore
Dated: September 20, 2021



Corporate
Governance

The Chairman is responsible for the Board's authority, effective performance, and high standards of governance. His role
is to ensure that the Board as a whole is thoroughly and constructively involved in determining and establishing the
strategy and policies of the Company. He also ensures that the decisions taken by the Board are in the best interest of
the Company, representing the consensus of the Board.

The Chairman encourdges the highest standards of integrity and establishes good corporate governance policies and
practices. He ensures that the Chief Executive Officer and the Management team successfully execute the plans and
policies decided by the Board.
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Flying's Board of Directors plays an effective role in managing strategic matters, establishing and reviewing targets, and
financial objectives.

The Board fulfills its responsibilities in compliance with the legal framework under the Companies Act, 2017, and adopts
corporate governance practices for effective control. The collective acumen of the Board is interpreted into its decisions
which forms the basis for Management to achieve its targets.

The CEO leads the Management, builds an organizational culture, and is a role mocdiel for the entire Company.

The Chief Executive Officer is entrusted with the general management of the Company’s business and is responsible for
proposing and developing the Company's strategy and overall commercial objectives, in close consultation with the
Chairman and the Board of Directors. He is also responsible for the management of the Company's claily operational
activities, strategic planning, budgeting, financial reporting, and risk management. The CEO is responsible for the
implementation of the plans and policies approved by the Board and its Committees, in pursuit of the Company's goals
and objectives, with the support of the Management team.
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As per the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board needs to
act on a well-versed basis in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders. Board's performance evaluation is
carried out to set the ‘tone at the top’ ensuring the right mix of knowledge, expertise, and skills to maximize performance.

Formal Orientation Courses
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The Company makes appropriate arrangements to carry out an orientation for its Directors to acquaint them with the
Regulations of the Code, applicable laws, Company's operations, their duties and responsibilities enabling them to
effectively govern the affairs of the listed Company. A formal orientation program is arranged for every new member of
the Board to provide better understanding of the Company's structure, business, targets and operations. This orientation
provides a brief insight of the Company's core competencies, status of Company's affairs, Investments, summary of the
Company’'s major assets, liabilities, noteworthy contracts and major competitors. It also includes details of major risks
including all legal and regulatory framework risks, all major shareholders, suppliers, auditors, and other stakeholders.

The Company has always believed in geing the extra mile and staying ahead of the curve. Aligning with this strategy, we
have complied with the mandatory legal compliances under all applicable rules, regulations, and standards including
listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and the Companies Act, 2017.

LHERERE
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Name of company:  Flying Cement Company Limited
Year ending: 30th June 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

Description Number of Directors
G) Male B
b) Female 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors 2
b) Non-executive Directors 3
¢) Executive Directors 2

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Bodrd have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2017
(the “Act”) and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Majority of the Directors of the Company are exempted from the requirement of Director’s Training
Program and Two of Directors have obtained certificate of Directors' Training Program.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer including their remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

1. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

51



12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Omar Naoeem Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Qasim Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan Member Non-Executive Director

b) HUMAN RESOURCE AND

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Momin Qamar Member Executive Director
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan Member Non-Executive Director
c) Nomination Committee: Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate nomination

committee and the functions are being performed by the human resource and remuneration
committee. The Board shall consider to constitute nomination committee after next election of Directors;

d) Risk Management Committee: Currently, the Board has not constituted a risk management
Committee and senior officers of the Company perform the requisite functions and apprise the Board
accordingly. The Board shall consider to constitute risk management committee after next election of
Directors.

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and cadvised to
the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee was as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Met four times during the year
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Met once in the year

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function to who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are
not o close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

)

Kamran Khan
Chairman

Dated September 20, 2021
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Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. 201-Regency Plaza, M.M. Alam Road,
Gulberg-ll, Lahore, Pakistan
Chartered Accountants Ph: +82 42-15876891.4

Fax: +92 42-35764%50
A member firm of Email: Ihr@nza).com.pk

Web: www.nzaj.com.pk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Flying Cement Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governunce) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Flying Cement
Company Limited for the year ended June 30, 2021 with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the reguirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Place: Lahore
Date: September 20, 2021
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Financial Highlights

Six Years At Glance
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Financial Position

Assets Employed by

Proparty, plant and equipmant W.W n2e 6,640 5,637 5,282
Other assets 33 33 33 n 1 19
Current assets 3,003 2178 3,000 1573 1018
Total Assets 16,323 13,427 8,762 7220 6,320
Financed by (Rupees in Million)

Equity. 8188 8232 5434 3737 3576
Long term licbilities 4,366 2,649 1,663 1670 o72
Other current liabilities 4202 3801 2,547 2,664 1821 V772
Total equity and liabilities 18,280 18,323 13,427 9782 7229 6320
Turnover and profit [ (Loss) (Rupees in Million)

Gross sales 4380 1372 4822 4335 3,487 3377
Net turnover 3208 1080 azn 2910 2470 2476
cross profit  (oss) 308 (a82) 1 257 203 167
Operating profit [ (Loss) 29 (w!) n8 185 143 120
Profit { {Lass) before taxation 254 (s13). 184 233 188, 195
Profit / {Loss) after taxation 144 (s31). 142 182 181 146
tarnings [{Loss) per share (Rs) 038 (a.02) 0.81 103 092 083
Bredkup value per share (Rs.) 2386 46,34 4677 30,88 223 20132
Analysis of Statement of Financial Position (Rupees in Million)

Equity 8156 8232 5434 3737 3576
Non Current Liabilities 5106 4,366 2,649 1663 1870 e72
Current liabilities @ W ' 2,547 26684 1821 1772
Total Equity and Liabilities 18280 16,323 13,427 8762 7229 8320
Nan Current Assets 15,819 13.320 249 867 5,655 5301
Current Assets 2381 ﬁ.b’ds 2178 3,080 1573 1018
Total Assets 18,280 16,328 13427 9,782 7,229 8,320
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Vertical Analysis %

Equity: 8131 5170 5658
fon Current Liabilities 27,83 1973 17.04 231 15.38
Current tiabilities 2298 18.87 2728 25190 28.04
Total Equity and Liabilities- 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Non Current Assets 8160 8378 68.34 78.23 83.88
Current Assets 1292 18.40 16.22 3168 277 1832
Total Assets 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Horizontal Analysis (Cummulative %)

Equity 150.88 128.08 130.20. ‘5198 451 100

Non Current Liabilities 425,40 34931 172.58 s nase 100

Current Lichilities 13706 n4.48 4372 5034 279 100

Total Equity and Liabilities - 591.80 7 348.52 73.47 7009 100.00
Non Current Assets 15127 2585 689 100

Current Assets 203.38 54.47 oo

Total Assets 8118 100.00
Horizontal Analysis (Cummulative %)

Equity 4541 45 100

Non Current Liabilities (0.43) 789 100

Current Liobilities 46.26 279 100

Total Equity and Liabilities 8125 7918 100.00
Non Current Assets 1786 6589 100

Current Assets 26.4) 54.47 100

Total Assets n4.37 6116 100.00
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Analysis of Statement of Profit and Loss Accounts

Gross turnover 4380 1372 4822 4335 3467 3377
Net turnover sﬂb’s msu ‘32n 2810 2,470 2,476
Cost of sales 2,303 1542 3,081 2,653 2267 2,309
Gross (ioss) [ profit 303 (a82) 19 257 203 167
Administrative Expense (54) (s8) (s0) (48) (39) (26)
Distribution Expanse ) (8 (8) 6] (8) (s)
Othar operating expense (18). = (3) (8) (18) (15)
Operating Profit | (Lass) 29 (s28) ne 185 143 120
finance Cost \@. (80) (33) (44) @) 6]
Other Income 106 85 ‘98 ‘92 64 78
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 254 (51) 184 23 199 195
Taxation (o) (8) (42) (s2) (38) (s0)
profit { {Loss) after taxation 144 (531) 142 182 16 146
Other Comprehensive income 0.064 0.045 0073 0.040 0076 0.062
Tatal Comprehensiva income for the yaar 144 (s31) 142 182 181 146
Vertical Analysis-%
Turnover 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100,00
Cost of Sales 9055 14283 8417 a7 077 9327
@ross Profit 945 (a283) 583 883 828 873
Administrative Expense 168 5.34 153, 180 150 107
Distribution Expense 034 077 028 025 025 021
Other operating expense 058 = 0.40 0.81 0.62 0.62
operating (1oss) / profit 585 362 637 577 484
Finance Cost 224 741 100 151 033 012
Other incame (3:30) (a:5) (@o) @) (2e) @)
‘prafit/ (Loss) before tewation 74 (a750) 583 801 805 789,
Taxation 343 186 128 177 152 200
Profit / (Loss) after taxation 448 435 624 653 588
Other Comprehensive income 0,004 0002 0.001 0.003 0.003
Total Comprehensive income for the year 448 (a918) 435 624 653 588
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2021 2020 2018 2018 2017 2016
Horizontal Analysis (Cummuiative %)
Turnover 29.48 (56.40) 3214 17.55 (0.22) 100.00
Cost of Sales 2571 (33.22) 3342 14.92 (183) 100.00
Gross Profit a7 (a77.35) 14.34 54,09 2198 100.00
Administrative Expense 103.99 n8,53 89.36 7610 49,06 100.00
Distribution Expense 107.65 58.44 74.83 4068 16.53 100.00
Othar operating expense 2328 (100.00) (13.08) 16.81 073 100.00
Operating (loss) / profit asn (540.78) (2) 54.56 18.96 100.00
Finance Cost 2358 2,643 1022 1,405 w7 100,00
Other Income 36.08 22 26 W (18) 100,00
(Loss) / profit before taxation 2988 (36254) (5:72) 18.35 182 100,00
Taxation 121,83 (83.285) (15.79) 401 (24.20) 100,00
(Loss) [ profit after taxation (138) (484.28) (2.29) 24.58 10.68 100.00
Other Comprehensive income (12.21) (27.40) 18.03 (35.68) 2259 100.00
Total Comprehensive income for the year (139) (484.08) (2.28) 2455 10.88 100.00
Horizontal Analysis (Year on Year %)
Turnover 196.96 (87.00) 12.40 7.82 (022) 100.00
Cost of Sales 88.26 (49.85) 1610 17.08 (1.83) 100.00
Gross Profit (185.52) (342.58) (25.80) 2632 2198 100.00
Administrative Expense (s:85) 15.41 753 1814 49.08 100.00
Distribution Expense 3024 (a81) 2429 207 16.53 100.00
Other operating expense 100.00 (100.00) (26.34) 15.96 073 100.00
Operating Profit / (Loss) (141,54) (546a7) (36.08) 28,83 484
Fincince Cost (10.38) 14439 (25.41) 442,60 177.29 100,00
Other Income 10.88 (3.02) 7.34 4249 (17.87) 100,00
profit | (Loss) before taxation (149.47) (378.47) (z101) .22 182 484
Taxation 51478 (5718) (19.04) 3721 (24.20) 100.00
profit | (Loss) after taxation (127.07) (472.80) (2157) 12,56 10.68 100.00
Other Comprehensive income 20.92 (38.49) 83.45 (47.52) 22.59 100.00
Total Comprehensive incama for the year (127.08) (a72.57) (21.54). 1253 10.68 100.00

58



Financial Ratios
Debt to Equity Ratio
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Current Ratio
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Gross Profit to sales
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Profit before tax to Sales
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Composition Of Balance

Sheet
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Equity and Liabilities

Percentage

== Trade and other payables-13%

== Short term finance-10%
Equity-49%

== Long term finance-21%

== QOther Liabilities-7%

Assets

Percentage

«= Property, plant and equipment-81%

== Stock in trade-8%

e= Other assets-1%

64



Financials
at a Glance




Sales Revenue

3500
3000
2500

2000

PKR in Million

1500

1000

500

Q 2016 2017 2018 2019

Total Assets

28000
24000
20000

PKR in Million
:

9,761

L !

2020

16,323

12,280

7228
o 206 2017 2018 2019

Net Profit/(Loss)

800

400

PKR in Million
(-]

-600

2020

(s31)

2018 2077 2018 2019

2020

202

TGF

Cost of Sales
3500
3000 3,080
“g_ 2500 2,653
= 2000
£
o
X 1500
1000
500

0 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021

Shareholders Equity

8000

8000

7000
c
o
= 8000 ‘
=
=
£ 5000
o
X 4000

3918

3000

2000

1000

o 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Gross Profit/(Loss)

600
400
257

= .
S 200
-
=

]
£
<
& -200

-400

(462)
-600
2018 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021

66



Striving for /
Excellence in
Corporate

Reporting

l\ I\{\)\/ \ f\7



Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. 201-Regency Plaza, MM, Alam Road,

Gulberg-l, Lahore, Pakistan
Chartered Accountants Ph: +02 42-358768914

Fax; +82 42-35764558
A member firm of Email: Ihr@nzaj.com.pk

—— Web: www,nzaj.com.pk
~~ PrimeGlobal

Aiv AssSciation of
Incapandart Accounting Frimns

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Flying Cement Company Limited

-

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2021

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Flying Cement Company Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 202, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30,2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements ds a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Stores, spares and loose tools:

(Refer to the note no 19 to the financial
statements)

The company has store spares and loose tools
of amounting Rs. 255.05 million at current year
end. The store items are kept by the company at
its factory premises and as per policy of the
company are recorded at weighted average
cost.

Due to significance of the value of store items
and to ensure accuracy of the quantities and
weighted average value we considered store
spares and loose tools to be a key audit matter.

We performed following audit procedures to
verify store spares and loose tools:

Visited company factory during annual stock
take to verify the physical quantities of store
items at year end.

During physical verification checked physical
condition of store items for any impairment .

Verified purchases and consumption of store
items during the year.

Verified weighted average rate and ensured
that closing store is recorded at accurate value.

Loan from associated undertakings:

(Refer to the note no 10 to the financial
statements)

The company has loan from associated undertakings
of amounting Rs. 331.89 million at current year end.
These companies are being considered associated
company on the basis of common shareholding of
directors directly or indirectly in excess of 20%.

Due to complexity of nature and specific disclosure
requirement of applicable financial reporting
framework we considered loan from associated
undertakings to be a key audit matter.

We performed following audit procedures to
verify loan from associated undertakings:

Verified common shareholding of directors
directly or indirectly in excess of 20% to ensure
that associated undertaking are accurately
identified.

Verified balance of the loan at year end through
independent direct confirmation from the
parties.

Checked subsequent settlement of the loan.

Checked the adequacy of disclosure of loan
from associated undertaking in the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
financial reporting framework.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reloted to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b)the staternent of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (xix of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c)investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d)no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Flying Cement Company Limited for the year ended June 30, 2020 were audited by
Tahir Siddigui & Co, Chartered Accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on
October 05,2020.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shahid Mohsin Shaikh (FCA).

e MmO Ly Ty o4

Lahore
Date: September 20, 2021
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Flying Cement Company Limited
Statement of Financia Position
As at 30 June 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Authorized share capital
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. 4,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 3,760,000,000 1,760,000,000
376,000,000, ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Reserves 6 548,555,943 397,721,568
4,308,555,943 2,157,721,568
Directors & shareholders loan 7 697,298,582 1,970,674,892
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 8 3,965,661,753 4,027,666,417
4,662,960,335 5,998,341,309
8,971,516,278 8,156,062,877
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term liabilities 9 4,114,951,771 3,440,947,104
Loan from associated undertaking 10 331,867,808 328,726,928
Long term deposits 11 14,005,340 14,005,340
Deferred liabilities 12 645,044,386 582,753,672
5,105,869,305 4,366,433,044
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 13 1,620,162,968 1,455,593,421
Directors & shareholders loan 808,540,887 744,442,920
Unclaimed Dividend 14 59,526 59,526
Short term finances 15 415,229,671 1,582,311,299
Current portion of long term finance 9 1,358,298,000 18,252,000
4,202,291,052 3,800,659,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,308,160,357 8,167,092,210
Contingencies and commitments 16 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18,279,676,635  16,323,155,087
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant & equipment 17 15,885,677,785 || 13,286,873,693
Long term security deposits 18 32,880,151 32,880,151
15,918,557,936  13,319,753,844
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares & loose tools 19 250,053,087 799,103,679
Stock in trade 20 970,617,841 1,307,317,011
Trade debts 21 185,871,391 3,488,783
Advances, deposits, prepayments & other receivables 22 749,642,350 870,098,845
Cash and bank balances 23 204,934,030 23,392,925
2,361,118,699 3,003,401,243
TOTAL ASSETS 18,279,676,635  16,323,155,087
The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



Flying Cement Company Limited

Statement Of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Gross Sales 24 4,379,653,073 1,372,197,678
Less Salestax and federal excise duty 1,167,083,956 290,048,264
Trade discount 6,840,640 2,641,280
1,173,924,596 292,689,544
Net sales 3,205,728,477 1,079,508,134
Cost of Sales 25 (2,902,791,827)  (1,541,891,726)
Gross Profit / (L oss) 302,936,650 (462,383,592)
Operating Expenses
Distribution Expenses 26 (10,797,764) (8,290,495)
Administrative Expenses 27 (53,841,326) (57,679,187)
Other Operating Expenses 28 (18,802,510) -
(83,441,600) (65,969,682)
Operating Profit / (L 0ss) 219,495,050 (528,353,274)
Finance Cost 29 (71,675,623) (79,963,580)
Other Income 30 105,878,210 95,491,568
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 253,697,637 (512,825,286)
Taxation 31 (110,012,895) (17,894,634)
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 143,684,742 (530,719,920)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of obligation of employees retirement benefits (76,622) 63,364
Deferred tax on remeasurement of defined benefits plan 22,220 (18,376)
(54,402) 44,988
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 143,630,340 (530,674,932)
Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share (before tax) - Basic 32 0.67 (2.91)
Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share (after tax) - Basic 32 0.38 (3.02)
The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
M e @M %W% | = —I=
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FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

75

Director

Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

Capital Reserves
Ordinary Share Accumulated Directors & . . ] Total
Capital Profit / (L oss) Shareholders L oan Revaluation | Gain on Disposal of
Surplus Shares
(Rs) (Rs) (Rs) (RS) (Rs) (Rs)
Balanceasat July 01, 2019 1,760,000,000 738,147,441 1,515,674,892 4,090,936,482 126,978,994 8,231,737,809
Revaluation surplus on Property, Plant & Equipment - - - - - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (530,719,920) - - - (530,719,920)
Other comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year - 44,988 - - - 44,988
Directors & Shareholders loan - - 455,000,000 - - 455,000,000
Incremental depreciation - 63,270,065 - (63,270,065) - -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 1,760,000,000 270,742,574 1,970,674,892 4,027,666,417 126,978,994 8,156,062,877
Revaluation surplus on Property, Plant & Equipment - - - - - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 143,684,742 - - - 143,684,742
Other comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year - (54,402) - - - (54,402)
Directors & Shareholders loan - Net - - (2,273,376,310) - - (1,273,376,310)
Incremental depreciation - 62,004,664 - (62,004,664) - -
Issuance of right shares 2,000,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000,000
Shares issue expenses - (54,800,629) - - - (54,800,629)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 3,760,000,000 421,576,949 697,298,582 3,965,661,753 126,978,994 8,971,516,278
The annexed notesfrom 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
N s @s&ts %&c\ gg | = =




FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Cash generated from operations 1,518,681,011 (981,445,108)
Gratuity Paid - (369,800)
Finance cost paid (71,675,623) (79,963,580)
Income Tax (paid) / refund received (17,624,996) 26,712,114
Net Cash from Operating Activities 1,429,380,392 (1,035,066,374)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Fixed Capital Expenditure (2,769,772,267)| | (2,207,851,970)
Long Term Security deposit - -
Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities (2,769,772,267)  (2,207,851,970)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Term Finance (493,076,961) 2,832,373,185
Current maturity long term finance 1,340,046,000 (40,000,000)
Associted undertaking 3,140,880 (39,749,512)
Increase in Share Capital 2,000,000,000 -
Shares issue expenses (54,800,629) -
Director & Shareholders Loan (1,273,376,310) 455,000,000
Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,521,932,980 3,207,623,673
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 181,541,106 (35,294,671)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - at the beginning of the year 23,392,925 58,687,595
Cash and Cash Equivalents- at the end of the year 204,934,031 23,392,925

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Flying Cement Company Limited
Notes To The Financia Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

1

21

22

2.3

31

LEGAL STATUSAND OPERATIONS

Flying Cement Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company on December 24,1992
under the Companies Ordinance ,1984. (Now the companies Act, 2017). The shares of the company are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

The principa activities of the company are to manufacturing, marketing and sale of cement. The geographical location and address of
the company’ s business units including plants are as follows:

Business Unit Geographical Location & Address
Head Office (Registered office) 04- Sarwar Colony Sarwar Road Cantt, Lahore.
Manufacturing Plant 25-Km. LillaInterchange Lahore - ISlamabad Motorway,Mangowal Distt. Khoshab

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement Of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financia Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of M easurement
These financia statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain items, as disclosed in the relevant
accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

These financia statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (PKR. / Rupees) which is the Company’s functional currency. Amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of PKR. / Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Key Judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, requiresthe
use of certain critical accounting estimates. In, addition, it requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the
company’ s accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to ;

Valuation useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of Property, Plant and equipment [Refer to Note 17].
Provision for slow moving inventories

Obligation of defined benefit plans for employees.[ Refer to note 12.2]

Estimate of current and deferred tax.[ Refer to note 12.1]

Estimate of contingent liabilities.

Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

Changein accounting standards, inter pretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards
New and Amendmentsto published accounting and reporting standards which became effective during the year:

There were certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became mandatory for the Company during the year.
However, the amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company.

IAS 1 (Amendments) ‘Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 (Amendments) ‘ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors'; Effective date (annual reporting periods beginning on or after) January 31, 2023

IFRS 3 (Amendments) ‘ Business Combination’; Effective date (annual reporting periods beginning on or after) January 31, 2022

IFRS 16 (Amendments) ‘Leases ; Effective date (annual reporting periods beginning on or after) January 31, 2021
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Flying Cement Company Limited
Notes To The Financia Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9 ‘Financia Instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Financia Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures'. ; Effective date (annual reporting periods beginning on or after)
January 31, 2021

New and Amendmentsto published accounting and reporting standardswhich are not yet effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards or interpretation:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract; Effective date (annual reporting periods beginning on or after) January 01, 2023
The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, Plant and equipment

The Company has adopted revaluation model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for
equipments furniture and fixture and vehicles which are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any.
Freehold land is stated at cost lessimpairment loss, if any.

Depreciation charged on all depreciable assets is charged to profit and loss account on the reducing balance method over its estimated
useful life at annual rates mentioned in note of fixed assets (17) after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on additions
is charged from the month in which asset is available for use and on disposal before the month of disposal. Residual values and and the
useful lives of the assets are reviewed at least at each financia year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognized as
separate asset as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the company
and cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized at the time of replacement. Normal repair
and maintenance and day to day servicing are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and
altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, useful lives and
residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' and is applied prospectively in the financia statements by adjusting the depreciation charge for the period in
which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods. Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gain and loss
on disposal is determined by comparing the carrying amount of that asset with the sales proceed and is recognised within ‘ other income
/ other operating expenses' in the statement of profit .

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred
and construction period is carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available
for use.

Stock - in - trade

Stock in trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice values
plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work in process and
finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit are valued at
cost accumulated upto the reporting date.

The company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on an ongoing basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down to its net
redlizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of related inventory.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in order to make
sde
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Stores, spares & loosetools

Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net reglizable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted average
cost. Items in transit are stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying amounts of stores,
spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescenceif thereis any changein usage.

Taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is aso recognized in other
comprehensiveincome or directly in equity, respectively.

Current

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The charge for
current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or
the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Trade debtsand other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are classified as financial assets at amortized cost according to IFRS 9. Under IAS 39, trade and other
receivables were previously classified as |oans and receivables. Trade debts are initially recognized at original invoice amount which is
the fair value of the consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts. The
Company uses simplified approach for measuring the expected credit losses for all trade and other receivables including contract assets
based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Company estimates the credit losses using a provision matrix, where trade receivables are
grouped based on different customer attributes along with historical, current and forward |ooking assumptions. Bad debts are written off
with the approval of board of directors when identified.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position. For the purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash
equivaent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks and short term borrowings under markup arrangement, saving and deposit
accounts.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortized cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial liabilities are recognized initialy at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest method.

A financia liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a DE recognition of original liability and recognition of a new
liability and the difference in respective carrying amountsis recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Assets

The details of new accounting policies after the application of IFRS 9 is as follows. The new IFRS effectively eliminated loans and
recelvables category of the previous IAS 39.

Classification

Financial assets are classified, into following categories: financial assets at amortized cost, financia assets at fair value through profit or
loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income as per the requirements of IFRS-9. The financial assets are
classified at initia recognition based on the business model used for managing the financial assets and contractua terms of the cash
flows.
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Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset shall be classified asfinancial asset at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met

the assets held within a business model whose objectiveisto hold assets in order to collect contractua cash flows

Contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principa and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assetsat Fair Valuethrough Other Comprehensive |ncome

Debt instruments where contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the objective of the company is
achieved by both collecting cash flows and selling the financial assets.

Equity investments that are not held for trading and the company made an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure it at fair
value with only dividend income recognized in profit or loss.

Financial asset at fair value through Profit or loss

Financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive Income.

A debt instrument can be classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains or losses on them on different basis.

Recognition and M easur ement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for al financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially al risks and rewards of ownership.
After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at amortized cost. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair vaue of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the statement of profit or loss within ‘ other income/ other
operating expenses’ in the period in which they arise.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or lossis recognized in the statement of profit or loss as part of ‘ other
income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
‘financia assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’ category are recognized in other comprehensive income with only
dividend income recognized in profit or loss. The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or 10ss - is removed from equity and recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in the statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets and ligbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legaly
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on alies the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business.

Derivative, financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair values. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value hedge or cash
flow hedge.

Fair Value Hedge

A hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of arecognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment or a component
of any such item that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss.

A hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with all or a component of a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable

that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan rupees at monthly average rates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are trandated into rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses are charged
to profit and loss account.

Impair ment of Non- financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal
of previous impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Reversal of
impairment lossis restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Revenuerecognition

According to the core principles of IFRS-15, the Company recognizes the revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods and services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. The Company recognizes the revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps.

Identify the contract with customer.

Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

Determine the transaction price.

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Recogni ze revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company isinvolved in manufacturing and sale of cement. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company satisfies
a performance obligation (at a point of time) by transferring promised goods to customers being when the goods are dispatched to
customers. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes,
duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Income from different sources other than above is recognized on the following basis

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Related Party transactions

The company enters into transactions with related parties on arm’s length basis. Prices for transactions with related parties are
determined using admissible valuation methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to approval of the board of
directorsit isin theinterest of the company to do so.

Long term investment in associates

Investment in associated companies is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under this method, investment is initially
recognized at cost plus the the Company’s equity in undistributed earnings and losses after acquisition, less any impairment in the
vaue of individual investments.

Staff Retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e gratuity schemefor all its permanent employees subject to attainment of retirement age
and minimum service of prescribed period. Contributions are made to fund on the basis actuarial recommendations. Actuarial valuation
is carried out using the projected unit credit method. All actuarial gains and |osses are recognized in other comprehensive Income.

Earning Per Share-Basic
The Company presents earning per share data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Dividend and appropriations

Dividend is recognised as liability in period in which it is declared. Appropriations of profit are reflected in the statement of changesin
equity in the period in which appropriations are approved.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at face value.
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SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorized Capital
400,000,000 (2020 : 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each.

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

- 337,419,189 (2020 : 137,419,189) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
fully paid up in cash.

- 22,580,811 (2020: 22,580,811) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
fully paid up for consideration other than cash - Plant & Machinery

- 16,000,000 (2019: 16,000,000 ) bonus shares of Rs.10/- each fully
issued as bonus shares.

RESERVES

Capital Reserve
Revenue Reserve
Un-appropriated Profit/(Loss)

DIRECTORS & SHAREHOLDERSLOAN - UNSECURED
Directors & shareholdersloan

Note

7.1

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
4,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
3,374,191,890 1,374,191,890
225,808,110 225,808,110
160,000,000 160,000,000
3,760,000,000 1,760,000,000
126,978,994 126,978,994
421,576,949 270,742,574
548,555,943 397,721,568
697,298,582 1,970,674,892
697,298,582 1,970,674,892

The Directors have provided interest free |loan for expansion and working capital requirements. The repayment of the loan is at the discretion

of the Company.

SURPLUSON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Balance as July 01,

Add: Revauation Surplus

Less: Surplus transferred to accumulated profit
Incremental depreciation
Deferred Tax effect

4,027,666,417 4,090,936,482
4,027,666,417 4,090,936,482
87,330,512 89,112,767
(25,325,848) (25,842,702)
62,004,664 63,270,065
3,965,661,753 4,027,666,417
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The company got its assets i.e. land, building, plant & machinery revalued on June 30, 2006 on the basis of current market prices by M/s
Hasib Associates (Pvt.) Limited, an independent and approved valuers from Pakistan Banks Association. Subsequently the company got its
assets revalued in June 2013 by an independent valuer. However, no material differences were identified. Subsequently, as per principles and
guidelines issued by IFRS, the company got its assetsi.e. land, building, plant & machinery revalued on June 30, 2019 on the basis of current
market prices by M/s Hasib Associates (Pvt.) Limited, an independent and approved valuers from Pakistan Banks Association. Surplus on
revaluation includes freehold land amounting to Rs.111.594 million ( 2020: Rs. 111.594 million).

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Loans from banking companies - secured 9.1 4,114,951,771 3,440,947,104

4,114,951,771 3,440,947,104
LOANSFROM BANKING COMPANIES - SECURED
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - |1 911 1,274,048,580 1,274,048,580
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - 111 9.1.2 36,370,000 50,059,000
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - IV 9.13 1,124,548,433 1,258,548,433
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - V 9.14 400,000,000 400,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - VI 9.15 134,000,000 -
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - VI 9.16 1,349,369,125 -
National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance- VIII 9.17 608,382,580 -
Al Baraka Bank Diminishing Musharika 9.1.8 546,531,053 476,543,091

5,473,249,771 3,459,199,104
Less: current portion of long term liabilities as shown under current liabilities 1,358,298,000 18,252,000

4,114,951,771 3,440,947,104

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance of Rs.1,500 million with sub-limit of Import LC-Sight from National Bank of Pakistan
a 25% Margin over fixed assets secured against 1st charge of Rs.2,000 million over al present and future fixed assets
(Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the company and personal guarantees of al directors to finance up gradation of production capacity. The
facility rescheduled Rs.1274.049 million on 01-09-2020.

The rescheduled facility includes a deferment period of 9 months and principal to be repaid in 14 quarterly installments of Rs.93.75 million
each. The first installment will be fall due on 31-12-2021. Markup shall be charged at 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a.

Sub-limit of LC-Sight includes facility of Rs.1,450 million against nil Cash Margin to finance import requirement for up-gradation of

production capacity to secured against lien on documents of title to Goods and same security packages and sponsor commitment as for
Demand finance facility. The facility will expire on sight and repayment against the facility will be through disbursement of demand finance /
own source of company.

The Company has availed facility of demand finance facility 111 fresh facility of Rs.73 million for cost over runs of plant expansion to finance
for retirement of import documents including bills of exchange arising due to upward fluctuations in currency appreciation of Euro / Dollar
parity with Pak Rupees with a markup of 3 month KIBOR plus 2% p.a. The facility will expire on 31-03-2022 and principal isto berepaid in
16 quarterly installments of Rs.4.563 million. The facility of demand finance are secured against 1st charge of Rs.98 million over all present
and future fixed assets (hypothecation/Mortgage) of the Company, lien of import documents and personal guarantees of all Directors.
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LC-Sight OTT includes facility for import of additional machinery / upgrading production capacity to fresh facility PKR equivalent of up to
USD 8.882 million calculated at conversion rate on the date of issuance of LC or PKR 133 USD which ever is lower i.e. maximum up to
1,181.306 million against nil Cash Margin to retire import documents / to finance additional machinery arising due to modification in
previous CAPEX in order to assure reliability of plant at enhanced capacity secured against lien on documents of title to Goods and same
security packages and sponsor commitment as for Demand finance facility. Upon retirement of each bill of exchange, customer shall deposit
prorate amount of exchange difference over and above the DF limit of Rs 1,181.306 million ensuring that NBP funded exposure remains
within DF limit of Rs 1,181.306 million. The facility will expire on sight and repayment against the facility will be through disbursement of
demand finance / own source of the Company.

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance of Rs.1,181.306 million with sub-limit of Import LC-Sight from National Bank of
Pakistan at 25% Margin over Fixed Assets secured against 1st charges of Rs.1,576 million over all present and future fixed assets
(Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the Company and personal guarantees of all directors to finance up gradation of production capacity.

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance facility-V of Rs 400 million from National Bank of Pakistan secured against 1st Pari
Passu charge of Rs 534 million over al present and future fixed assets (Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the Company, Mortgage of two leased
residential properties of Sponsors of 5 & 5A, Bridge Colony, Abid Majeed Road, Lahore having forced sale value Rs 190.153 M and
personal guarantees of all directors. The facility is rescheduled on 01-09-2020. As per the rescheduled |etter, the Company is required to pay
20 quarterly installments of Rs 20 million each starting from 31-12-2021. It will be charged with 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.75 %

Fresh Demand Finance - Facility for Rs 134 million to Finance foreign exchange differential amount / finance cost overrun requirement of the
Company against First Pari Passu charge of the company amounting to Rs 179 million and personal guarantees of all Directors. It will be
charged with 3 Months KIBOR plus 2 %. It will be paid of in 57 months includiing grace period of 9 months from first draw down in limit.
tentativelv up 31-03-2025.

Fresh Demand Finance Facility Rs 1,400 million have been obtained for against our current facilities of LC 300 million, and 1,000 million
and Cash Finance Rs 100 million against 1st Pari Passu charge of the Company amounting to Rs 1,867 million over all present & future fixed
assets of the Company, Hypothecation charge over Plant & Machinery and mortgage charge on land and personal guarantees of two sponsor
Directors. Markup shall be charged at 3 Months KIBOR plus 2 %. It will be paid of in 78 months including grace period of 18 months from
first draw down in limit. tentatively up 31-12-2026.

Fresh Demand Finance Facility Rs 610 million have been obtained against our current mark up on CF, DF and LC facilities against 1st Pari
Passu charge of the company amounting to Rs 814 Million, First Charge over all present & Future fixed assets of the company. Hypothecation
charge over Plant & Machinery and mortgage charge on land and persona guarantees of all Directors. It will be paid in 36 monthly
installments started from 31-03-2021 to 29-02-2024.

All these facilities a so include commitment of sponsoring directors through pledge of shares.

A Diminishing Musharika Facility of Rs 600 million is obtained from Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited, as per Islamic mode of financing
tenor is 5 years with one half years grace period for principal repayment only and afterward, the due amount installment shall be paid by 7
equal half yearly installments over the remaining years of 3.5 years. The finance is secured against 1st Pari Passu charge over current assets
of the Company valuing Rs. 144 million, 1st Pari Passu charge over Fixed assets of the Company valuing Rs 882 million, and personal
guarantee of all Directors of the Company. Mark-up is charged 6 month KIBOR + 3%.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

LOAN FROM ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS - UNSECURED
Flying Paper Industries Limited 174,480,989 169,740,989
Flying Board & Paper Products Limited 112,933,186 114,532,306
Poly Paper & Board Mills(Pvt) Limited 34,300,000 34,300,000
Zamam Paper & Board Mills (Pvt) Limited 10,153,633 10,153,633

331,867,808 328,726,928

These represents markup free loans from associated undertakings that will be repayable on discretion of the company

LONG TERM DEPOSITS - UNSECURED

Dedlers 111 2,805,000 2,805,000
Transporters 11.2 11,200,340 11,200,340
14,005,340 14,005,340
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These represent interest free security deposits from dealers and the dealership is provided for a period of five years. The agreement is

renewable on expiry of previous contract period. These are being utilized by the Company in accordance with agreed terms.

These represent interest free security deposits from transporters and as per agreement these are repayable after a period of five years. The
agreement is renewable on expiry of previous contract period. These are being utilized by the Company in accordance with agreed terms.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred Taxation
Gratuity

Deferred Taxation - Net
Taxable temporary differences - effect thereof

-Excess of accounting book value of fixed assets over their tax base
-Prepaid rent

Deductible temporary differences - effect thereof

-Cratuity

-WPPF & WWF

-Remeasurement of defined benefits

-Unused tax losses

12.1
12.2

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
643,280,504 581,478,366

1,763,882 1,275,306
645,044,386 582,753,672
1,130,887,726 1,129,198,533

87,000 =
(489,305) (369,839)
(11,973,368) (6,520,640)
(22,220) 18,376
(475,209,329) (540,848,064)
643,280,504 581,478,366

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position based on the recent actuarial valuation carried on June 30, 2021 are as follows

Statement of Financial Position
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Changein present value of defined benefits obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

Current service cost for the year

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Benefits paid

Gains and losses arising on plan settlements

Remeasurements
Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) / losses from changesin financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Chargefor theyear

Current service cost

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Expenses charged to profit and loss

1,763,882 1,275,306
1,763,882 1,275,306
1,275,306 1,240,660
303,553 317,364
108,401 150,446

- (369,800)

2,327 (7,106)
74,295 (56,258)
1,763,882 1,275,306
303,553 317,364
108,401 150,446
411,954 467,810
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2021 2020

The chargefor theyear hasbeen allocated as follows: Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales - -
Distribution cost - -
Administrative expenses 411,954 150,446
Cost of sale of electricity - -

411,954 150,446
Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
Expected rate of increase in salary level N/A N/A
Valuation discount rate 10% 8.50%

The entity operates a salary based defined benefit plan for the employees.
Expected charge to profit and loss account for year ended June 30, 2021 amount to Rs.411,954.

Sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis for the above principal actuarial assumptions as of the statement of financial position date showing how the defined
benefit obligation would have been affected by changesin the said assumptionsis as follows:

Discount rate + 100 bps 1,709,811 1,231,773
Discount rate - 100 bps 1,822,600 1,322,989
Salary increases + 100 bps 1,823,661 1,323,864
salary increases - 100 bps 1,707,860 1,230,181
Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation:

Weighted average duration - in number of years 6 Years 6 Years
The retirement will at most continue - year 2027 2026

Description of therisksto the Company

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following risks:
Mortality risks - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries service/age distribution and
the benefit.

Final salary risks - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is different than what was assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount changes similarly.

Withdrawal risks - Therisk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the
beneficiaries' service/age distribution and the benefit.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Payables & others - unsecured 855,731,547 948,144,914
Accrued liabilities 9,751,517 35,324,165
Accrued Markup 225,020,171 222,427,457
Taxes and Other Govt. Levies payable 379,942,770 88,334,666
Other liabilities 149,716,963 161,362,219

1,620,162,968 1,455,593,421

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

It represent amount of unclaimed dividend pertaining to past years and is still un claimed. This amount is being transferred to a separate bank
account.

SHORT TERM FINANCES
Loans from banking companies-secured 15.1 415,229,671 1,582,311,299

415,229,671 1,582,311,299
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15.1.2

16
16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

17

LOANSFROM BANKING COMPANIES-SECURED 2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Albaraka lslamic Bank 15.1.1 45,696,561 298,221,165
National Bank of Pakistan 15.1.2 369,533,110 1,184,090,134
National Bank of Pakistan (Cash Finance) - 100,000,000
415,229,671 1,582,311,299

A letter of credit facility usance/ acceptance 180 days of Rs. 22.50 million (2020: Rs. 22.50 million) is obtained from Albaraka Islamic Bank
(Pakistan) Limited with a sub limit of letter of guarantee of Rs. 0.20 million ( 2020: Rs. 0.20 million), Rs 20 Million LC Usance/ Acceptance
facility against 100% Cash Margin, Rs 50 Million LC Sight/Usance clubbed with similar credit limit of Flying Paper Industries Limited, Rs
235 Million LC Usance/Acceptance (OTT) to meet the contractual and import requirements of the company. The finance is secured against
Ranking charge over current assets of the company valuing Rs. 144 million, Ranking charge over Fixed assets of the company valuing Rs.300
million, lien over import documents valuing Rs. 277.5 million and personal guarantee of all Directors of the company. Mark-up is charged as
per bank's Schedule of charges. This facility is converted into Diminishing Musharika Facility of Rs 600 (Million).

During the year, the Company has restructured financing from National Bank of Pakistan through letter of credit facility of usance (180
Days) to Rs. 400 million from 700 million at 20% Cash Margin with expiry of 31-12-2021 for the purpose of importing coal, packing
material and machinery parts. The facility is secured against 1st charge of Rs.534 million over al present and future fixed assets of the
Company and personal guarantees of two sponsor Directors.

All these facilities a so include commitment of sponsoring directors through pledge of shares.

CONTINGENCIESAND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) has issued a show cause notice to the company for an increase in prices of cement across the
country. As aresult of it an amount of Rs. 12 million was imposed as a penalty. The case is currently before the Honorable High Court. The
Court granted the stay order restricting the CCP to pass any adverse order(s) against the show cause notices issued to the cement
manufacturers. Starting date of hearing in the Court was 11-11-2008.

Sales tax audit was conducted in 2015 and an impugned liability of Rs. 40.9 million was determined out of which Rs. 20 million has been
deposited by the company under protest. The company feeling aggrieved filed an appeal before appellate tribunal which is pending and is
likely to be decided in favour of the Company.

Income tax audit was conducted of tax year 2017 and an impugned liability of Rs.3.6 billion was determined. The company feeling aggrieved
filed an appeal before Commissioner Appeal which is pending and is likely to be decided in favor of the Company.

Income Tax audit was conducted of tax year 2016, 2018 and 2019. and also sales tax audit of the year 2016,2018, 2019 and 2020. The
Company have stay order against audit from Honorable Lahore High Court Lahore.
Commitments
Commitments in respect of outstanding letter of credit amount to Rs.139.614 million (2020 Rs.1,411,789(M). It includes letter of credit
facilities for procurement of new cement production plant, raw material and parts of machinery.
The Banks has issued letter of guarantees on behalf of the Company for the following:

- Albaraka lslamic Bank :Excise Collection Office, Sindh Development & Maintenance amounting to Rs. 0.20 million

- National Bank of Pakistan: Collector of customs MCC appraisement east Karachi wide B/L No. 00LU2030969510 and GD No. KAPE-
HC-163690 dated 05-03-2021 amounting to Rs. 5 million.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Operating Assets - tangible 171 7,356,066,326 6,775,059,833
Capital Work in Progress - at cost 17.6 8,529,611,459 6,511,813,860

15,885,677,785 13,286,873,693
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171
Operating Fixed Assets

Furniture,
Building on Electrical Tools and fixture Total
. Land- Plant and . . . .
Particulars freehold Roads A Insatallatio Equipmen and Vehicles operating
Freehold Machinery A
land n t equipmen assets
t
(Rupees) -
At July 01, 2019
Cost 124,717,500 617,424,582 5,514,865 7,370,595,265 23,029,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 8,170,227,054
Accumulated depreciation - 152,936,472 1,684,988 1,072,095,265 12,443,072 936,771 1,158,647 16,530,012 1,257,785,227
Net book value 124,717,500 464,488,110 3,829,877 6,298,500,000 10,586,713 454,592 365,662 9,499,373 6,912,441,827
Movement during the period
Net book value as on July 01,2019 124,717,500 464,488,110 3,829,877 6,298,500,000 10,586,713 454,592 365,662 9,499,373  6,912,441,827
Additions - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
Disposals:
Cost - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge - 9,289,763 76,598 125,970,000 1,063,671 45,459 36,566 949,937 137,431,994
Closing Net Book Value 124,717,500 455,198,347 3,753,279  6,172,530,000 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  6,775,059,833
At June 30, 2020
Cost/Revalued amount 124,717,500 617,424,582 5,514,865 7,370,595,265 23,079,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 8,170,277,054
Accumulated depreciation - 162,226,235 1,761,586  1,198,065,265 13,506,743 982,230 1,195213 17,479,949 1,395,217,221
Net book value 124,717,500 455,198,347 3,753,279 6,172,530,000 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  6,775,059,833
At July 01, 2020
Cost/Revalued Amount 124,717,500 617,424,582 5,514,865 7,370,595,265 23,079,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 8,170,277,054
Accumulated depreciation - 162,226,235 1,761,586  1,198,065,265 13,506,743 982,230 1,195,213 17,479,949 1,395,217,221
Net book value 124,717,500 455,198,347 3,753,279  6,172,530,000 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  6,775,059,833
Movement during the period
Net book value as on July 01,2020 124,717,500 455,198,347 3,753,279  6,172,530,000 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  6,775,059,833
Additions - - - 720,651,127 760,000 - - - 721,411,127
Disposals:
Cost - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge - 9.103,967 75,066 129,334,272 962,562 40,913 32,910 854,944 140,404,634
Closing Net Book Value 124,717,500 446,094,380 3,678,213 6,763,846,855 9,370,480 368,220 296,186 7,694,492  7,356,066,326
At June 30, 2021
Cost/Revalued amount 124,717,500 617,424,582 5,514,865 8,091,246,392 23,839,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 8,891,688,181
Accumulated depreciation - 171,330,202 1,836,652 1,327,399,537 14,469,305 1,023,143 1,228,123 18,334,893 1,535,621,855
Net book value 124,717,500 446,094,380 3,678,213  6,763,846,855 9,370,480 368,220 296,186 7.694,492  7,356,066,326
Annual rate of depreciation (%) - 2 2 2 10 10 10 10
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
17.2 Depreciation for the year hasbeen allocated asunder:
Cost of Goods Sold 139,516,780 136,445,491
Administrative expenses 887,854 986,503
140,404,634 137,431,994

17.3 The company have revalued its Land, Building and Plant & Machinery. Revaluation of the assets was carried out by independent valuer M/S Habib Associates (Pvt) Limited on
June 30, 2019. The force sale value of Rs. 6,887,705,610 comprise of Land is Rs.124,717,500 Building is Rs.464,488,100 and Plant and machinery Rs.6,298,500,000 as per

valuation report.
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17.4

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of the assets would be as follows:

Land- Bulldinojon Plant and Electrical Tools and Eeintivie; il
Particulars I3 freehold Roads A q - fixture and Vehicles operating
reehold Machinery Insatallation Equipment .
land equipment assets
(Rupees)
At July 01, 2019
Cost 13,123,746 292,730,850 5,514,865 2,605,446,474 23,029,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 2,968,790,777
Accumulated depreciation - 86,622,420 1,684,988 504,205,144 12,443,072 936,771 1,158,647 16,530,012 623,581,054
Net book value 13,123,746 206,108,430 3,829,877 2,101,241,330 10,586,713 454,592 365,662 9,499,373 2,345,209,723
Movement during the period
Net book value as on July 01,2019 13,123,746 206,108,430 3,829,877 2,101,241,330 10,586,713 454,592 365,662 9,499,373  2,345,209,723
Additions - - - = 50,000 = = = 50,000
Disposals:
Cost - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge = 4,122,169 76,598 42,024,827 1,063,671 45,459 36,566 949,937 48,319,226
Closing Net Book Value 13,123,746 201,986,261 3,753,279 2,059,216,503 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  2,296,940,497
At June 30, 2020
Cost 13,123,746 292,730,850 5,514,865 2,605,446,474 23,079,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 2,968,840,777
Accumulated depreciation = 90,744,589 1,761,586 546,229,971 13,506,743 982,230 1,195,213 17,479,949 671,900,280
Net book value 13,123,746 201,986,261 3,753,279 2,059,216,503 2.573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  2,296,940,497
At July 01, 2020
Cost 13,123,746 292,730,850 5,514,865 2,605,446,474 23,079,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 2,968,840,777
Accumulated depreciation = 90,744,589 1,761,586 546,229,971 13,506,743 982,230 1,195,213 17,479,949 671,900,280
Net book value 13,123,746 201,986,261 3,753,279 2,059,216,503 2.573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  2,296,940,497
Movement during the period
Net book value as on July 01,2020 13,123,746 201,986,261 3,753,279 2,059,216,503 9,573,042 409,133 329,096 8,549,436  2,296,940,497
Additions - - - 720,651,127 760,000 = S - 721,411,127
Disposals:
Cost - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge - 4,039,725 75,066 47,189,756 962,562 40,913 32,210 854,944 53,195,875
Closing Net Book Value 13,123,746 197,946,536 3,678,214  2,732,677.874 9,370,480 368,220 296,186 7,694,492  2,965,155,749
At June 30, 2021
Cost 13,123,746 292,730,850 5,514,865 3,326,097.601 23,839,785 1,391,363 1,524,309 26,029,385 3,690,251,904
Accumulated depreciation - 94,784,314 1,836,651 593,419,727 14,469,305 1,023,143 1,228,123 18,334,893 725,096,155
Net book value 13,123,746 197,946,536 3,678,214  2,732,677.874 9,370,480 368,220 296,186 7,694,492  2,965,155,749
Annual rate of depreciation (%) - 2 2 2 10 10 10 10
17.5 Particularsof immovable property (i.e. land & building in the name of company) are asfollows.
L ocation 25-Km. Lilla Interchange Lahore - Islamabad Motorway, Mangowal Distt. Khoshab
Usage For production purposes
Area 120 Acres 4 Kanal
18. Movement in Capital Work in Progress
Asat . . . Asat
Addition Adjustment | Revaluation -
01-07-2020 ) 30-06-2021
Building 356,349,590 167,088,830 o o 523,438,420
Plant & machinery 6,155,464,270 2,571,359,896 720,651,127 = 8,006,173,039 o
6,511,813,860 2,738,448,726 720,651,127 2 8,529,611,459
17.7 Movement in Capital Work in Progress
Asat . . . Asat
Addition Adjustment | Revaluation
01-07-2019 J 30-06-2020
Building 330,261,890 26,087,700 o o 356,349,590
Plant & machinery 3,973,750,000 2,181,714,270 o o 6,155,464,270
4,304,011,890 2,207,801,970 o 3 o 6,511,813,860
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Note

178 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

18

18.1

19

20

21

22

221

23

Building
Plant & machinery

LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Security depositss WAPDA

These are security deposits held with WAPDA and do not carry any markup arrangement.

STORES, SPARESAND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores & Spares
Furnace ail, coal & lubricants

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw & Packing material

Work in process 25
Finished goods 25

Stock intradeis recorded at lower of cost or net realizable value.

TRADE DEBTS- considered good though unsecured

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS & OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers - Unsecured, considered good 221
Advances to staff - Unsecured, considered good

Margin held by banks

Advance income tax

Salestax & excise duty tax year 2013

Other advances

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
523,438,420 356,349,590

8,006,173,039 6,155,464,270
8,529,611,459 6,511,813,860

32,880,151 32,880,151

32,880,151 32,880,151

1,084,673 6,210,934
248,968,414 792,892,745
250,053,087 799,103,679

35,762,643 145,093,288
830,352,224 1,145,936,536
104,502,974 16,287,187
970,617,841 1,307,317,011
185,871,391 3,488,783
146,575,596 46,378,231

204,000 -

53,626,546 29,800,026
433,726,721 432,291,191

20,000,000 20,000,000

95,509,487 341,629,397
749,642,350 870,098,845

It includes balance with Flying Kraft Paper Mill (Pvt) Limited and Lahore Paper Sack amounting to Rs 4,311,307 (2020: 4,311,307) and Rs

41,020,828 (2020: 41,020,828) respectively.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
In Hand
At Banks- current accounts

560,568 838,641
204,373,462 22,554,284
204,934,030 23,392,925
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24

25

SALES
Gross Sales
Local - Cement
- Biomass Fuel

Less:
Sales Tax
Excise Duty
Trade discount

NET SALES

COST OF SALES

Raw Material Consumed

Furnace Qil, Diesel, Coal and Lubricants consumed
Packing Material consumed

Stores and Spares consumed

Biomass Fuel

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

Electricity

Extraction Charges and government charges
Repair and Maintenance

Vehicle Running Expenses

Communication

Entertainment

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Other Manufacturing Expenses
Depreciation

Work In Process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of Goods M anufactured
Finished Goods

Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of Sales

Note

17.2

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
3,639,948,382 713,315,174
739,704,691 658,882,504
4,379,653,073 1,372,197,678
584,849,956 116,134,264
582,234,000 173,914,000
6,840,640 2,641,280
1,173,924,596 292,689,544
3,205,728,477 1,079,508,134
86,585,099 26,161,617
778,540,712 655,905,377
271,582,975 64,718,829
11,305,097 793,604
352,565,578 629,166,431
88,024,339 85,789,320
855,822,647 701,176,395
79,650,750 32,410,750
2,915,100 1,724,552
915,391 1,249,335
83,100 66,350
68,825 17,680
215,030 105,098
163,270 25,400
7,468,609 456,855
139,516,780 136,445,491
2,675,423,302 2,336,213,084
1,145,936,536 343,225,402
(830,352,224) (1,145,936,536)
315,584,312 (802,711,134)
2,991,007,614 1,533,501,950
16,287,187 24,676,963
(104,502,974) (16,287,187)
(88,215,787) 8,389,776
2,902,791,827 1,541,891,726
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26

27

271
27.2

273

28

29

30

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, Wages and Benefits
Rent, Rates and Taxes

Travelling, Conveyance and V ehicle Running

Communication

Electricity, Water & Sui Gas
Advertisement

Entertainment & Miscellaneous

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, Wages and Benefits
Directors Remuneration
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Legal and Professional
Communication

Charity and Donation
Fee and Subscription
Insurance

Auditors' Remuneration
Fine & Penalties
Depreciation

Salaries, Wages and Benefits includes Rs. 411,954/- (2020: Rs. 467,810/-) in respect of gratuity.

Note

271

272

273

17.2

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

10,524,042 7,936,149
204,405 160,000
17,190 4,800
6,722 15,600
11,273 6,183
- 142,300
34,132 25,463
10,797,764 8,290,495
13,558,278 14,217,816
22,800,000 22,800,000

600,000 -
1,650,000 2,799,000
873,494 1,701,281
20,000 92,000
2,650,808 7,628,569
8,560,127 6,205,160
1,277,000 1,070,000
963,765 178,858
887,854 986,503
53,841,326 57,679,187

The Company has paid the charity and donation of Rs. 20,000/-(2020: Rs.92,000/-) and directors or their spouses were not interested in the

donee.

Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fee

Code of Corporate Governance
Half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses

OTHER EXPENSES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers Welfare Fund

FINANCE COST
Mark up
Bank Charges and Commission

OTHER INCOME

Sale of Trees, Scrap and damaged stock
Creditors written back (Over Three Y ears)

852,000 750,000
60,000 50,000
315,000 220,000
50,000 50,000
1,277,000 1,070,000
13,625,007 =
5,177,503 =
18,802,510 =
71,232,931 79,577,134
442,692 386,446
71,675,623 79,963,580
76,690,921 62,981,120
29,187,289 32,510,448
105,878,210 95,491,568
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31  TAXATION
Current

Deferred

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

48,188,537 17,624,996

61,824,358 269,638
110,012,895 17,894,634

31.1 Numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented as the company is subject to the
provisions of minimum tax under section 113 and alternate corporate tax under section 113 C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

31.2 The applicable income tax rate for subsequent years beyond tax year 2019 was reduced to 29% on account of changes made to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2020. Therefore, deferred tax is computed at the rate of 29% applicable to the period when

temporary differences are expected to be reversed / utilized.

32 EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC
Thereis no dilutive effect on the earnings per share, and basic earnings per shareis based on:
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Profit / (Loss) after taxation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

32.1 Earnings/(Loss) per share (beforetax) - Basic
322 Earnings/(Loss) per share (after tax) - Basic
33 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees at the end of year

Average number of employees during the year

34  RELATED PARTIESTRANSACTIONS

253,697,637 (512,825,286)
143,684,742 (530,719,920)
(No. of shares)
376,000,000 176,000,000
(Rupees)

0.67 (2.91)

0.38 (3.02)

544 415

403 415

Related parties of the company comprise associated undertakings, directors, key employees and management personnel. Detail of transactions
with related parties except remuneration and benefits to directors and management personnel under their terms of employment, are as under:

Nature of transaction
Purchase of goods, services

Flying Paper Industries Limited
Flying Board & Paper Products Limited

Sales of goods, services

Flying Board & Paper Products Limited

Loan Received from
Kamran Khan
Momin Qamar
Samina Kamran

Relationship

Associate
Associate

Relationship

Associate

Relationship
Director
Director
Director

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
4,740,000 170,460,725
1,599,120 -
6,339,120 170,460,725
- 25,194,000
- 25,194,000
93,909,845 200,000,000
17,650,000 200,000,000
- 55,000,000

111,559,845 455,000,000
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341

34.2
34.3
344

Year end balances
Payable to related parties.
Receivable from related parties

Flying Kraft Paper Mills (Pvt) Ltd

Lahore Paper Sack

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

Notes
10
Relationship
10% Shareholding of directors of Flying
Cement Company Limited in Flying Kraft
Paper Mills

Son of director of Flying Cement Company
Limited is proprietor in Lahore Paper Sack.

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
331,867,808 328,726,928

4,311,307 4,311,307

41,020,828 41,020,828

45,332,135 45,332,135

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place.
The maximum balance was outstanding as at 30th June 2021 shown in note above.

Name

Basis of association

Aggregate % of

Shar eholding (Directly or Indirectly)

Flying Paper Industries Limited

Associated Company -
Common share holding

23% shareholding in Flying Paper Industries Limited and
26% shareholding in Flying Cement Company Limited

Flying Board & Paper Products Limited

Associated Company -
Common share holding

64% shareholding in Flying Board & Paper Products Limited
and 31% shareholding in Flying Cement Company Limited

Zaman Paper & Board Mill (Private) Limited

Associated Company -

Common share holding Limited

64% shareholding in Zaman Paper & Board Mill (Private)
Limited and 31% shareholding in Flying Cement Company

Poly Paper & Board Mills (Private) Limited

Associated Company -

Common share holding Limited

41% shareholding in Poly Paper & Board Mills (Private)
Limited and 26% shareholding in Flying Cement Company
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35 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIESTO CASH FLOW ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance ason 01 July 2020

Increase/ (Decrease)

Short Term Finance

Long term finance

Director & Shareholders Loan
Associated Undertaking
Balance as on 30 June 2021

Balance ason 01 July 2019

Increase/ (Decrease)

Short Term Finance

Long term finance

Director & Shareholders Loan
Associated Undertaking
Balance as on 30 June 2020

2021
Short Term Current Maturity of Associated .
) Long term loan . Director Loan
Finance Long Term Loan under taking
1,582,311,299 3,440,947,104 18,252,000 328,726,928 1,970,674,892
(1,167,081,628)
674,004,667 1,340,046,000
(1,273,376,310)
3,140,880
415,229,671 4,114,951,771 1,358,298,000 331,867,808 697,298,582
2020
Short Term Current Maturity of Associated .
. Long term loan : Director Loan
Finance Long Term Loan under taking
506,777,638 1,684,107,580 58,252,000 368,476,440 1,515,674,892
1,075,533,661
1,756,839,524 (40,000,000)
455,000,000
(39,749,512)
1,582,311,299 3,440,947,104 18,252,000 328,726,928 1,970,674,892
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36

36.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate
mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy and
maintains flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Market risks are managed by the Company through the adoption
of appropriate policies to cover currency risks and interest rate risks.

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk representing accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if one party to afinancial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation or its failure to perform duties under the contract as contracted. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number
of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations that is susceptible to changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative
sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting dateis as follows:

The company's Credit risk exposures are categorized under the following heads:
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date was:

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Trade debtors 21 185,871,391 3,488,783
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22 149,340,033 136,060,891
Cash at banks 23 204,373,462 22,554,284
Long term security deposits 18 32,880,151 32,880,151
572,465,037 194,984,109

The trade debts at the statement of financial position date are al domestic debts. Furthermore, credit quality of customers is assessed taking
into consideration their financial position and previous dealings and on that basis, individual credit limits are set. Moreover, the management
regularly monitors and reviews customers’ credit exposure. Accordingly, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk.

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Not past due 48,326,562 907,084

Past due 1-30 days 68,772,415 1,290,850

Past due 31-60 days 40,891,706 767,532

Past due 61-90 days 16,728,425 313,990

Over 90 days 11,152,283 209,327
185,871,391 3,488,783

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable includes staff advances, margin held with the Banks and advances to Associated
Companies. Considering the financial position of related parties and credit quality of the institution, the Company’s exposure to credit risk is
not significant.

Long term deposits have been mainly placed with suppliers of electricity, gas and telecommunication services. Considering the financial
position and credit quality of theinstitutions, the Company’s exposure to credit risk is not significant.
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36.2

36.3

36.3.1

36.3.1.1

36.3.1.2

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to
manage liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is not
materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially obligations / commitments of the Company are short term in nature and are
restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition, the Company has obtained finance facilities from various commercial banks to
meet any deficit, if required to meet the short term liquidity commitments.

The following are the contractual maturity analysis of financial
2021

Morethan6  Morethan1 More than2

h Withi
Contractua cas NG onths and upto year and upto  years and

Carrying anount

flows months 1year 2 years upto 5 years
Long term finances 6,502,416,161 6,502,416,161 678,111,000 680,187,000 1,360,240000 3783878161
Trade and other payables 1,015,200,027 1015200027  1,015,200,027 - - -
Accrued Markup 225,020,171 225,020,171 225020171 - - -
Short term borrowings 415229671 415229671 415229671 - -
Unclaimed dividend 59,526 59,526 59,526 - - -
8,157,925,556 8157925556  2,333,620,395 680,187,000 1,360,240000 3,783878,161
2020

Morethan6  Morethan1l More than2

CETIERE] EE WILTE months and upto year and upto  years and

Carrying amount

[lets TS 1 year 2 years upto 5 years
Long term finances 5,740,348,924 5,740,348,924 9,126,000 49126000 1275779000 2234227912
Trade and other payables 1,144.831,293 1144831298  1,144,831,298 - - -
Accrued Markup 222427457 222427457 222427457 - - -
Short term borrowings 1582,311,299 1582311299 1582311299 -
Unclaimed dividend 59,5526 59,5526 59,526
8,689,978,504 8689978504  2,958,755,580 49126000 1275779000 2,234,227912

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financia instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the
market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply
and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rates only.

Interest raterisk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments were:

Effectiveratein % Carrying Amount
(Rupees)
2021 2020 2021 2020
Financial Liabilities
Variable Rate instruments:
Short term borrowings 8.76 14.72 415,229,671 1,582,311,299
Long term borrowings 9.26 14.72 5,473,249,771 3,450,199,104

Fair value sensitivity analysisfor fixed rateinstruments

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore a change
in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysisfor variousrate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by amount shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in a particular foreign currency rate (if any), remains constant. The anaysis is
performed on the same basis as for the previous year:-
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36.3.2

36.3.3

36.3.3.1

36.4

Rupees Rupees

Increase Profit Decr ease Profit
As at June 30, 2021 58,884,794 (58,884,794)
As at June 30, 2020 22,491,372 (22,491,372)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on profit / (loss) for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

Pricerisk

Pricerisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The company is not exposed to any price risk as there are no financial
instruments at the reporting date that are sensitive to price fluctuations.

Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to change in foreign exchange rates. It
arises mainly where receivable and payable exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The company is exposed to
currency risk on import of machinery mainly dominated in US dollars. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk for US dollars
isasfollows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Outstanding letter of credits 415,229,671 1,482,311,299
Averagerate 160.31 155.84
Reporting date rate 158.30 167.86

Sensitivity Analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been higher by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of
outstanding letter of credits.

The effect on profit and loss account is 41,522,967 148,231,130

The weakening of PKR against foreign currencies would have an equa but opposite impact on the post tax profit. The sensitivity
analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss)/profit for the year and assets/liabilities of the Company.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern
and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active marketsi.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted market prices at
the close of trading on the date of statement of financial position. The quoted market prices used for financial assets held by the
Company is current bid price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual or
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using afair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly (level 2).

= Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).

"The Company has not disclosed fair values of these financial assets and liabilities as these are for short term or reprice over short term.
Therefore, carrying amounts of material assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair value.
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30-Jun-21
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Long term security deposits

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments & other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities - measured at fair value
Financial liabilities- not measured at fair value

Long term liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term finances

Directors & shareholders loan
Markup accrued

Unclaimed dividend

30-Jun-20
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Long term security deposits

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments & other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities - measured at fair value
Financial liabilities- not measured at fair value

Long term liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term finances

Directors & shareholders loan
Markup accrued

Unclaimed dividend

Note

18
21

23

13
15

13
14

18
21

23

13
15

13
14

el <m_cm§3cm: Rl OIS Omm:.m:n_ EE Amortized cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit / loss through OCI equivalents

o = - 32,880,151 32,880,151 - - -
= ° - 185,871,391 185,871,391 - - -
o = - 749,642,350 749,642,350 - - -
2 - 204,934,030 - 204,934,030 - - -
= - 204,934,030 968,393,892 1,173,327,922 - - -
> = - 5,473,249,771 5,473,249,771 - - -
= ° - 1,395,142,797 1,395,142,797 - - -
> = - 415,229,671 415,229,671 - - -
= ° - 808,540,888 808,540,888 - - -
> = - 225,020,171 225,020,171 - - -

59,526 59,526 - - -
> = - 8,317,242,823 8,317,242,823 - - -

el <m:._m53:m: I Wl Omm:.m:a &= Amortized cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit / loss through OCI equivalents

- - - 32,880,151 32,880,151 - - -
- - - 3,488,783 3,488,783 - - -
- - - 870,098,845 870,098,845 - - -
- - 23,392,925 - 23,392,925 - - -
- - 23,392,925 906,467,779 929,860,704 - - -
- - - 3,459,199,104 3,459,199,104 - - -
- - - 1,233,165,964 1,233,165,964 - - -
- - - 1,582,311,299 1,582,311,299 - - -
- - = 744,442,920 744,442,920 o s -
- - - 222,427,457 222,427,457 - - -
- - - 59,526 59,526 - - -
- - - 7,241,606,270 7,241,606,270 - - -
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38

38.1

39

Capital Risk Management

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as debt
divided by total capital employed. Total capital employed is calculated as equity as shown in the statement of financia position plus
debt.

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Total Borrowings 5,559,347,832 7,322,660,223
Total Equity 8,971,516,278 8,156,062,877
Total Capital Employed 14,530,864,110 15,478,723,100
Gearing Ratio 38.26% 47.31%
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Executive Directors Non Executive Directors Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 876,000 876,000 8,727,273 8,727,273 ® - 9,600,000 7,500,000
Medical allowance 87,600 87,600 872,727 872,727 = - 960,000 750,000
963,600 963,600 9,600,000 9,600,000 © - 10,560,000 8,250,000
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 20 18
No amount was paid to directors for attending the Board of Directors meeting.
PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed Capacity Actual Production
2021 2020 2021 | 2020
Tons Tons Tons Tons
Clinker 686,000 686,000 291,741 186,576
Cement 720,000 720,000 397,000 86,400

Shortfall in production is due to closure of factory in the 1st quarter of financial year 2021 because of COVID-19 and aso due to
prevailing market conditions.
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41

42

43

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profit / (Loss) for the period - befor e taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Creditors written off

Provision for Gratuity

Finance cost

(Increase) / decreasein current assets
(Increase) in Stores, spares & loose tools
(Increase) / Decrease in Stock-in-trade
(Increase) / decrease in Trade debts

(Increase) / Decrease in Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(Increase) / decreasein current liabilities

Increase / (Decrease) in director and Shareholder loan

Increase (Decrease) in Trade and other Payables

Cash generated from operations

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) that first surfaced in China was classified as a pandemic by the World Health Organization
on March 11, 2020, impacting countries globally. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines,
social distancing, and closures of non-essential services and have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in
an economic slowdown. The potential impacts from COVID-19 remain uncertain, including, among other things, on economic
conditions, businesses and consumers. However, the impact varies from industry to industry in different jurisdictions. Based on
management’ s assessment, considering measures taken by Government, COVID-19 does not have a significant impact on the Company
during the year and supports the appropriateness of its going concern assumption.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 20 September 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

GENERAL

- Figuresin the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

- Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of comparison.

oo Do 4

Director Chief Executive

K fon

Note

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
253,697,637 (512,825,286)
140,404,634 137,431,994

(29,187,289) (32,510,448)

411,954 467,810

71,675,623 79,963,580
183,304,922 185,352,936
437,002,559 (327,472,350)
549,050,592 (47,781,342)
336,699,170 (849,677,574)
(182,382,608) 6,542,910
120,456,495 18,484,569
823,823,649 (872,431,437)

64,097,968 (439,483,000)
193,756,836 657,941,679
257,854,803 218,458,679

1,518,681,011 (981,445,108)

l—«i__!’%;

Chief Financial Officer
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Notic.e Of Annuadl Generadl
Meeting

Notice is hereby given that 28th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Flying Cement Company Limited (the “Company”) will be held on 28th October
2021 at 09:30 hours at (Thursday) at Heaven Banguet Halll, 343-D-1, Nespak Society,
Near Wapda Town Lahore to transact the following business: -

I To confirm the minutes of the last General Meeting held on 28-10-2020.

2- To receive, consider and adopt audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2021 together with Directors’ Auditors’ reports and Chairman’s Review thereon.

3- To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2022,

4- To elect (7) Directors of the Company, as fixed by the Board of Directors, for the next term of three years, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 159 of the Companies Act 2017, in place of following retiring
Directors.

1. Mr. Kamran Khan

2. Mr. Momin Qamar

3. Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan

4. Mrs. Samina Kamran

5. Mr. Qasim Khan

6. Mr. Omar Naeem

7. Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan

Issue of Bonus Shares

5- To consider and approve the bonus shares issue (@ 5% (1 bonus share for every 20 shares held) for the year
ended June 30, 2021 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

In order to give effect to the aforesaid, if thought fit, pass with or without modification the following
resolutions as Special Resolution:

RESOLVED “that a sum of Rs188,000,000/- out of Company’s profit be capitalized for issuing 18,800,000 paid
ordinary shares of Rs10/- each as bonus shares to be allotted to those shareholders of the Company, whose
names shall appear in the register of members at the close of business on October 20, 2021 @ 5% in the
proportion of 1 ordinary shares of Rs10/- each for every 20 ordinary shares held by a shareholder. The said
shares shall rank pari passu with the existing shares of the Company as regards future dividend and in all
other respects”.

FURTHER RESOLVED “that fractional entitliements, if any, of the members shall be consolidated into whole
shares and sold in the stock market and the net proceeds from which sale, once realized, shall be distributed /
paid to the entitled shareholders in proportion to their respective entitlements, as per the applicable
regulations.
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FUTHER RESOLOVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer or Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby singly authorized and empowered to give effect to these resolutions and to do and cause to be done
all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or requested for issue, allotment and distribution of the said
bonus shares and the deposit of share proceeds of the fractions into aforementioned account”.

FURTHER RESOLVED “that the Secretary of the Company or any one of the Directors be and is hereby
authorized to issue a certified true copy of mentioned resolutions, as and when required.”

6. To ratify and approve transactions conducted with Related Parties for the year ended June 30, 2021 by
passing the following special resolution with or without modification:

“‘RESOLVED THAT the transactions conducted with Related Parties as disclosed in the note 34 of the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.”

7. To duthorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with Related Parties for the
financial year ending June 30, 2022 by passing the following special resolutions with or without modification:
‘RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on case to case basis for the financial year ending June 30,
2022

RESOLVED FURTHER that these transactions by the Board shall be deemed to have been approved by the
shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting for their formal
ratification/approval.”

(Attached to this Notice is a Statement of Material Facts covering the above-mentioned Special Business, as
required under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017).

8. To transact any other business with permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

/

Shahid Ahmad Awan Lahore
Company Secretary Dated: September 20,2021
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The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2021 to October 28, 2021
(both days inclusive)‘ Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt.)
Ltd., Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.HA. Phase VI, Karachi by the closed of business on October
20, 2021, will be considered in time to determine the entitlement of Bonus shares and to attend and vote
at the meeting.

e
A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy must be received at Company's
Head Office 4-Sarwar Colony, Sarwar Road, Lahore Cantt, Lahore duly stamped and signed not later than
48 hours before the meeting. Proxy Form may also be downloaded from the Company's website:
www flyingecement.com

CDC Account Helders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
No.l dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

A For Attending the Meeting:

l.In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders and [ or the person whose securities are in group account
and their registration detail are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing hisfher original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

II.In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director's resolution / power of attorney with the specimen signature of the nominee
shaill be produced (unless it has been provided earlier at the time of the meeting.

B For Appointing Proxies:

I.In case of individuals, the holder or sub account holder and [ or the person whose securities are in group account and their
registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

I. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers shall be mentioned on the
farm.

lll. Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
IV. The proxy shall produce his | her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

V. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director's resolution | power of attarney with specimen signature shall be submitted
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

e P — Spw
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in o city other than Lahore, and holding at
least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the facility of video —link for participating in
the meeting: The demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar at the address given herein above at
least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting. The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility
at least 5 days before the date of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to
access such facility.

I [ we of being member of

Flying Cement Company Limited, holder of

Ordinary shares as per Register

Folio#/CDC Account # [ participant ID # hereby opt for Video Conference facility at
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Change of Address

Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses immedictely. Shareholders are requested to provide above
mentioned information/documents to (i) respective Central Depositary System (CDS) participants and (i) in of physical
securities to the Share Registrar of The Company

CNIC, IBAN:

Members are requested to provide their Email, International Banking Account Number (IBAN), NTN and a copy of their
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records otherwise dill dividends entitlement (if any) will be withheld
in terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017

« For physical shares to M/s THK Associctes (Pvt) Ltdl.
- For shares in CDS to CDC Investors Afc Services or respective Participant

The Annual Report is being transmitted to shareholders through CDs/DVDs instead of sending these in Book form / hard
copy.

The Annual Report for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2021 has been placed on Company's website at
wwwi.flyingcement.com. However, if any shareholder desire to get the hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the
same shall be provided free of cost within seven working days of receipt of such request.

Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub - account with any of the brokers or Investor
Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including
safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as. per existing
regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Covid-19 tﬁ‘,untmngermv Planning for Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders

Due to current COVID-19 situation, the Government has suspended large public gatherings at one place. Additionally, the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (‘SECP') in terms of its Circular No.6 of 2021 issued on March 03, 2021 advised
companies to modify their usual planning for general meetings for the safety and weli-being of shareholders and the public at
large considering the SECP's directives, the Company intends to convene this AGM with minimal physical interaction of
shareholders while ensuring compliance with the quorum requirements and requested the members to consclidate their
attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies.

Accordingly, the Company has made arrangements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders, can now
participate in the AGM proceedings via video link. Those members who are willing to attend and participate in the AGM are
requested to register themselves by sending an email along with following particulars and valid copy of both sides of
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at ‘cosecretary@flyingcementcom’ with subject of ‘Registration for AGM' not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting:

Name of S Ho. Folio No./ CDC

Cell No. Email Address
Shareholder Account No.

Members, who will be registered, after necessary verification as per the above requirements, will be provided a password
protected video link by the Company via email. The said link will remain open from 09:30 a.m. on the date of AGM till the end of
the meseting. Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email
address ‘cosecretary@flyingcement.com’.

Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by consclidating their attendance trough proxies.

wERE R
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Agenda item No. 4 - Election of Directors

The term of office of the present Directors of the company will expire on October 31, 2021 In terms of Section 159(1) of the
Companies Act, 2017 ("Act”), the Board of Directors in its Board Meeting held on September 20, 2021 has fixed the number of
elected Directors at seven (7) to be elected in the Annual General Mesting of the Company for the period of next three years
commencing from October 31, 2021.

Any person who seeks to contest the election to the office of a Director, whether he is retiring directer or otherwise, shall file
with the Company Secretary, at Company's Head Office 4-Sarwar Colony Sarwar Road Lahore Cantt Lahore not later than
fourteen (14) days before the date of Annual General Meeting, the following documents:

1. His/her Folio No./CDC Investors Account No. CDC Participant No,/Sulb-Account No.

2. Notice of his/her interition to offer himself/herself for election of directors in terms of Section 169(3) of the Act, together with
the consent to act as a Directorin Form 28 prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

3. A detailed profile along with office address as required under SECP SRO 1196(1)/20]9.

4. A director must be @ member of the Company at the time of filing of his / her consent for contesting election of Directors
except d person representing a member, which is not a natural person.

5. A declaration confirming that:

(o) He / she is aware of his [ her duties and powers under the relevant laws, Memorandum & Articles of Association of the
Company and listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange: and

(b) He [she is not ineligible to become a director of a listed company under any provision of the Act, the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019 and any other applicable law, rules and regulations.

6. Independent Director(s) will be elected through the process of election of Director in terms of Section 159 of the Act and they
shall meet the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the Act, and the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors)
Regulations, 2018.

Agenda No.5 of Notice of AGM

The Board of Directors has recommended to the members of the Company to declare dividend by way
of issue of fully paid bonus shares @5% for the year ended June 30, 2021 and thereby capitalize a sum of
Rs188,000,000/. The Directors have also recommended that all the fractional bonus shares shall be
consolidated into whole shares and sold in the stock market and the net proceeds from which sale, once
redlized, shall be distributed / paid to the entitled shareholders in proportion to their respective
entitlements, as per the applicable regulations.

Agenda No.6 of Notice of AGM

Ratification and approval of the related party transactions carried out during the year ended June 30,
2021

Transactions conducted with all related parties have to be approved by the Boadrd of Directors duly
recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause 15 of the listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. However, during the year since Company's Directors
were interested in certain transactions due to their common directorships in the associated companies,
therefore common directors did not participate for approval of these transactions pursuant to section
207 of the Companies Act, 2017. The Board of Directors has approved the transactions with the related
parties from time-to-time on case to case basis for the year ended June 30, 2021 and such transactions
were deemed to be approved by the shareholders. Such transactions were to be placed before the
shareholders in the AGM for their formal approval [ratification.

All transactions with related parties to be ratified have been disclosed in the note 34 to the financial
statement for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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The company carries out transactions with its related parties on an arm'’s length basis as per the
approved policy with respect to transactions with related parties’ in the normal course of business. All
transactions entered into with related parties require the approval of the Board Audit Committee of the
Company, which is chaired by an independent director of the company. Upon the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, such transactions are placed before the board of directors for approvail.

The nature of relationship with these related parties has also been indicated in the note 34 to the
financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2021.The Directors are interested in the resolution only to
the extent of their common directorships in such related parties.

Agenda No.7 of Notice of AGM

Authorization for the Board of Directors to approve the related party transactions during the year ending
June 30, 2022:

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending June 30,
2022 on an arm's length basis as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related
parties’ in the normal course of business. The Directors interested in these transactions due to their
common directorship in the associated companies and other related parties. In order to promote
transparent business practices, the shareholders desire to authorize the Board of Directors to approve
transactions with the related parties from time-to-time on case to case basis for the year ending June
30. 2022, which transactions shall be deemed to be approved by the Shareholders. These transactions
shall be placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their formal approval/ratification.

The Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent of their common directorships in such
related parties.
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Share Price :
Sensitivity Analysis
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Month jul20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan2l Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr21 May 21 Jun 21
Share Price 7.98 8.60 8.04 7.88 772 8.46 9.48 10.67 12.62 1.67 17.30 2117

The Companys market capitalisation stood at Rs 8 billion, depicting a
increase of 468% as compared to last year whereas KSE-100 index rise from
34,889 to 47,356 at the end of the year registering a increase of 36% as
compared to last year. Market Price of the reached an all time high during the
year of Rs 25.50 per share.

Companys’ share price direclty linked with the operational and financial

performance of the Company. Following are the major factors which might
affect the share price of the Company in stock echange.
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Increase in Demand

Increase in demand of cement may result in increase in market price of bag
which will contribute towards better profitability and Earning per Share (EPS),
which will ultimately increase the share price.

Increase in Input Costs
Any variation in major input costs (coal and electricity) may affect the gross
margins, profitability and EPS favorably or unfavorably.

Currency Risk
The currency exchange rate fluctuations can have an adverse or favorable
affect the market share prices as the Company is involved in import.

Change in Government Policies
Any change in Government policies related to cement sector may affect the
share price of the Company favorably or unfavorably.

A 10 % increase [ decrease in share price of
the Company would have the following
impact on its Market Capitalization:

Share Price Sensitivity Impact on Market Capitalization(Rs. Million)
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Pattern Of
Shareholding

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021




WEREERa
~ T

Tevee! Shareholdings
Shareholders : Total Shares Held
From To
625 1 100 25464
622 101 500 275,386
1554 501 1,000 1148,956
1576 1001 5,000 4381355
459 5,001 10,000 3737.435
191 10,001 15,000 2474330
129 15,001 20,000 2,414133
93 20,001 25,000 2190,284
54 25,001 30,000 1514,297
22 30,001 35,000 725318
29 35,001 40,000 1123500
19 40,001 45,000 823,022
48 45,001 50,000 2,391,000
6 50,001 §5,000 317,409
4 55,001 60,000 240,000
5 60,001 85,000 315776
12 65,001 70,000 822,080
9 70,001 75,000 664,772
6 75,001 80,000 475,000
4 80,001 85,000 328,868
1 85,001 90,000 87,500
3 90,001 95,000 281500
20 95,001 100,000 1995499
4 100,001 105,000 412,045
8 105,001 110,000 855,058
4 110,001 15,000 454,068
8 115,001 120,000 712,500
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WEREERa
~ T

Tevee! Shareholdings
Shareholders Total Shares Held
From To

3 120,001 125,000 370,000
2 125,001 130,000 258,500
2 130,001 135,000 262273
1 135,001 140,000 139,000
1 140,001 145,000 145,000
6 145,001 150,000 895101
1 150,001 155,000 151,681
2 160,001 165,000 327,500
1 170,001 175,000 174,500
1 175,001 180,000 180,000
1 180,001 185,000 181,500
1 185,001 190,000 189,500
1 190,001 195,000 190,500
4 195,001 200,000 800,000
] 205,001 210,000 206,000
4 210,001 215,000 851636
1 220,001 226,000 222,500
2 225,001 230,000 455,500
1 235,001 240,000 240,000
1 240,001 245,000 243,000
2 245,001 250,000 496,500
1 250,001 255,000 253,000
1 265,001 270,000 269181
1 270,001 275,000 275,000
1 275,001 280,000 280,000
1 290,001 295,000 293100
2 205,001 300,000 600,000

112



L

Tevee! Shareholdings
Shareholders Total Shares Held
From To
1 375,001 380,000 380,000
1 390,001 395,000 390,500
2 395,001 400,000 800,000
1 405,001 410,000 409,000
1 420,001 425,000 421500
1 445,001 450,000 448,000
1 450,001 455,000 454,000
1 490,001 495,000 495,000
3 495,001 500,000 1,500,000
1 530,001 535,000 534,090
1 545,001 550,000 545,280
1 555,001 560,000 558,000
1 585,001 590,000 590,000
1 595,001 600,000 600,000
2 625,001 630,000 1258,000
1 630,001 635,000 633500
2 795,001 800,000 1,600,000
1 890,001 895,000 893,000
1 915,001 920,000 920,000
1 950,001 955,000 950,500
1 985,001 990,000 987.500
1 1:495,001 1,500,000 1500,000
1 1870,001 1875,000 1,872,500
1 1,955,001 1960,000 1,959,000
] 2,160,001 2165,000 2,160,050
1 2,845,001 2,850,000 2,845 811
1 2,995,00 3,000,000 3,000,000




WEREERa
~ T

Tevee! Shareholdings
shareholders : Total Shares Held
From To
1 3,025,001 3,030,000 3,028448
1 3.435,001 3440,000 8,439,000
1 3.480,001 3,485,000 3,485,000
1 3,510,001 3,515,000 3,510,492
1 4,060,001 4,065,000 4,060,001
1 4,215,001 4,220,000 4,216,000
1 4,730,001 4,735,000 4732718
1 6,040,001 8,045,000 6,045,000
1 7.230,001 7,235,000 7,230,291
1 9,605,001 9,610,000 9,609,500
1 9,660,001 9,665,000 9,660,050
1 11,055,001 1,060,000 1,055,550
1 11,080,001 11,085,000 1,082,007
1 14,600,001 14,605,000 14604474
] 19,085,001 19,090,000 19,089,682
1 22190,001 22195,000 22193670
1 24,095,001 24100,000 24,100,000
1 24,125,001 24130,000 24127500
] 28,820,001 28,825,000 28,824,314
1 93,065,001 93,070,000 93,085,035
561 Total 376,000,000
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Categories

Of Shareholders

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021
Particulars Shareholders Shares held Percentage
Directors, CEQ, Spouse & Children 12 218,623,303 581445
Banks, DFI, NBFI 1 25,000 0.0066
Insurance Companies 1 130,000 0.0348
Modarabas, Mutual Funds 8 8,352,500 22214
General Public (Local) 5207 126,995,045 33.7753
General Public (Foreign) 327 4,695,123 12487
Others 53 15,945 529 42408
Foreign Companies 2 1,233,500 0.3281
Total 561 376,000,000 100
Shareholders Category No. of Shares held

Directors, Ceo, Their Spouses And Minor Children

Mr. Kamran Khan 31,670,125
Mr. Momin Qamar 96,093,483
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 33275677
Mr. Qasim Khan 338,760,050
Mrs.Samina Kamran 19,089,682
Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan 1068
Mr. Omar Naeem 500
Mrs. Misbah Momin (W/O Mr. Momin Qamar) 4732718
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Categories
Of Shareholders

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

Shareholders Category
Directors, Ceo, Their Spouses And Minor Children

Executives

No. of Shares held

Associated Companies, Under Taking And Related Parties

Public Sector Companies And Corporations

Bainks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking 155.000

Financial Institutions And Insurance Companies.

Shareholders Holding 10% Or More

(other Than Those Reported In Directors) =

Mutual Funds 8.352.500

Others 15,945,529

Individuals Local 126,995,045
Foreign 4,695,123

Foreigh Companies 1,233,500

376,000,000

Transaction [ Trade of Company's Shares

The CEO, Directors, CFO, Head of Internal Auditors, Company Secretary (including their spouses and minor
Children) executed the following transactions in the shares of the Company during the financial year ended

June 30, 2021

Name Purchase Gift In Sales Gift Qut
Mr. Kamran Khan = 34,000,000 = 34,000,000
Mr. Memin Qamar = 34,000,000 =

Mr. Qasim Khan - = 480,000 14,000,000 ]
Mrs. Samina Kamran - = = 20,000,000
Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan 500 = =

Mr. Omar Naeem 5,000 = 10,909 -

*Mr. Wagar Zahid - = 500 =
**Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Khan 500 - = =

Mrs. Misbah Momin = = 3,370,000 15,000,000
Mr. Shahid Ahmad Awan 20,000 - 20,000 -

*Resigned on 10.09.2020
**Resigned on 03112020
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Proxy Form

IMPORTANT

Instruments of Proxy will nat be considered Reglstarsd Fofie

o valid uniess deposited or repeived at the

Company’s Registersd Offics atf 4-Sarwar Particlpant ID No. &

Calony, Sarwar Rood, lahore Cantt not AlcNo.

oter than 48 hours before the time of

holding the mesting No. of Sharos Held.

I/ We of
being @ member of Flying

Cement Company Limited and heider of __

Shares do hereby authorize

of

anather member of the company as my/our proxy to attend and vots for me /us

and on my four behalf at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thureday 28th

Octobar 2021 at 6830 hours or adjournment thereod.

Signature

Addrase;

CNIC or Paseport

Rupess Five
Revenua stamp

1Signature:

CNIC or Passport
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary,

Flying Cement Company Limited
4-Sarwar Colony, Sarwar Road,
Lahore Cantt Pakistan
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